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NOTICE OF 30TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 30th  Annual General Meeting of the members of M/s. Ojas Asset 
Reconstruction Company Limited will be held on 24th August, 2015 at the registered office of the 
company at C-17, Ground Floor, Laxmi Nagar, Nanakpura, Delhi - 110092 at 12:00 P.M. to transact 
the following business:

Ordinary Business:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone Financial Statements consisting of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 
2015, the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that date and the Explanatory Notes 
annexed to, and forming part of, any of the above documents together with the reports of the Board of Directors and the 
Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Tejas Hingu (DIN: 06936684), Director, who retire by rotation in compliance of the 
provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter called “the Act”) and being eligible, offers himself for re-
appointment.

3. “Resolved that pursuant to the provisions of Section 139(8) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 
2013 (hereinafter 'the Act') as amended from time to time or any other law for the time being in force (including any 
statutory modification or re-enactment thereof), M/s. DMKH & Co., Chartered Accountants, Mumbai (Registration No. 
116886W) be and are hereby appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company to fill the casual vacancy caused by the 
resignation of M/s. A M A A & Associates, Chartered Accountants, (Registration No. 013066C), Delhi and that they shall hold 
the office of the Statutory Auditors of the Company from the conclusion of this meeting until the conclusion of 36th Annual 
General Meeting on such remuneration as may be fixed by the Board of Directors in consultation with them.”

Special Business:

4. To regularize the appointment of Mr. Pravin Kamble (DIN: 07016322) as an Independent Non- Executive Director.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as Ordinary Resolution.

“Resolved that pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 read with schedule IV and other applicable provisions of The 
Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and clause 49 of the Listing Agreement Mr. Pravin Kamble 
(DIN: 07016322), who was appointed as an Additional Director pursuant to the Provisions of section 161(1) of The Companies 
Act, 2013 and the Articles of association of the Company and who holds office up to the date of this Annual general Meeting and 
in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing under section 160 of The Companies Act, 2013 proposing his 
candidature for the office of the Director, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the Company to hold office 
for a term of five consecutive years from 20/01/2015 to 19/01/2020, not liable to retire by rotation”.

5. To regularize the appointment of Mrs. Priya Khagram (DIN: 07250030) as an Independent Non- Executive Director.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as Ordinary Resolution.

“Resolved that pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 read with schedule IV and other applicable provisions of The 
Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and clause 49 of the Listing Agreement Mrs. Priya Khagram
(DIN: 07250030), who was appointed as an Additional Director pursuant to the Provisions of section 161(1) of The Companies 
Act, 2013 and the Articles of association of the Company and who holds office up to the date of this Annual general Meeting and 
in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing under section 160 of The Companies Act, 2013 proposing her 
candidature for the office of the Director, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the Company to hold office 
for a term of five consecutive years from 05/02/2015 to 04/02/2020, not liable to retire by rotation”.

6. To appoint Mr. Tejas Hingu (DIN: 06936684) as the Whole time Director of the company, 

To consider and, if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special Resolution: 

“Resolved that pursuant to the provisions of Section 196, 197, 203 and any other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the rules made there under (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in 
force), read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 and Articles of Association of the Company and subject to the approval 
of Central Government or other Government authority/agency/board, if any, the consent of the shareholders of the Company be 
and is hereby accorded to appoint Mr. Tejas Hingu as Whole Time Director of the Company for a period of three years with effect 
from 16/07/2015 on remuneration of `12,00,000/- (Rupees Twelve Lacs only) per annum, the details of which are given in the 
Explanatory Statement annexed hereto, with liberty to the Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as “the Board” which shall 
be deemed to include any committee which the Board may constitute to exercise its  powers, including the powers conferred by 
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this resolution) to alter and vary the terms and conditions of the said appointment and / or remuneration and / or agreement in 
the best interest of the Company so as not to exceed the limits specified in Schedule V to the Companies Act 2013, including any 
statutory modification or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force or any amendments and / or modification that may 
hereafter be made thereto by the Central Government in that behalf from time to time, or any amendments thereto as may be 
agreed to between the Board and Mr. Tejas Hingu.”

“Further Resolved that the Board of Directors of the Company or any committee thereof be and is hereby authorized to do all 
such acts, deeds and things as in its absolute discretion it may think necessary, expedient or desirable; to settle any question or 
doubt that may arise in relation thereto in order to give effect to the foregoing resolution and to seek such approval/ consent 
from the government departments, as may be required in this regard.”

7. To pursue / carry on the business mentioned in the other objects of the Company

To consider and, if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special Resolution: 

"Resolved that pursuant to provisions stipulated under sub section 3 of Section 179 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 consent of the Company hereby given to commence/carry/pursue 
new businesses as mentioned in clause 13 & 21 of the other objects in the Memorandum of Association of the Company, that is:-

“To cultivate, grow, produce or deal in any agriculture, vegetable or fruit products and to carry on all or any of the business of 
farmers, dairymen, milk contactor, dairy farmers, millers, surveyors, and vendors of milk product, condensed milk and 
powdered milk, cream, cheez, butter, poultry, fruits, vegetables, cash crops and provisions off all kinds, growers of and dealers in 
corn, hay, and straw, seeds men, nurserymen, and to buy sell, manufacture, and trade in any goods, usually traded in any of the 
above businesses or any other business inclusive of staple foods and medicinal separation from milk, vegetable and animal 
products or any substitute for any of them associated with farming interest.”

“To carry on the business of manufactures of or dealers in textile, including men made fibers, cotton, silk, jute, woolen and 
synthetics.”

“Resolved further that Board of Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorised severally to take all necessary steps to 
give effect to the said resolution".

8. Reclassification of Capital of the Company by Sub-division (Stock Split) of equity shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each 
into Rs. 1/- each

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution, as a Special Resolution: 

“Resolved that Pursuant to the provisions of section 61, 64 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 
(including any statutory modifications or reenactment thereof for the time being in force), and in accordance with Articles of 
Association of the Company and subject to the approvals, consents, permissions and sanctions, if any, required from any 
authority and subject to such conditions as may be agreed to by the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to 
as “the Board”, which term shall also include any Committee thereof), consent of the Members be and is hereby accorded to sub-
divide each Equity Share of the Company having Face value of Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten only) into 10 (Ten) Equity Shares of Face 
value of Rs.1/- (Rupee One Only) each fully paid-up and consequently, the Authorized Share Capital of the Company of Rs. 
21,25,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty One Crores Twenty Five Lakhs Only) would comprise of 21,25,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty One 
Crores Twenty Five Lakhs Only) Equity Shares of Re.1/- (Rupee One Only) each with effect from the “Record Date” to be 
determined by the Board for this purpose.” 

“Resolved further that Pursuant to the sub-division of the Equity Shares of the Company each Equity Share of the Face value of 
Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) as existing on the Record Date shall stand sub-divided into 10 (Ten) Equity shares of the Face value 
of Re.1/- (Rupee One only) each fully paid-up, with effect from the record date.”

“Resolved further that on sub-division, the 10 (Ten) Equity Shares of the Face value of Re. 1/- (Rupee One only) each be issued 
in lieu of one Equity Share of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each, subject to the terms of Memorandum and Articles of Association of 
the Company and shall rank pari-passu in all respects with and carry the same rights as the existing fully paid Equity Shares of 
Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each of the Company.”

“Resolved futher that upon sub-division of Equity Shares of the Company as aforesaid, the existing share certificate(s) in 
relation to the existing Equity Shares of Face value of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each held in physical form shall be deemed to 
have been automatically cancelled and be of no effect on and from the Record Date of sub-division. The Company may, without 
requiring the surrender of existing share certificate(s) directly issue and dispatch the new share certificate(s) of the Company in 
lieu of such existing share certificate(s) within the period prescribed or that may be prescribed in this behalf from time to time 
and in the case of shares held in dematerialized form, the number of sub-divided Equity Shares be credited to the respective 
beneficiary accounts of the shareholders with the Depository Participants, in lieu of the existing credits representing the Equity 
Share before sub-division.”

“Resolved further that the Board be and is hereby authorized to fix a Record Date and to take such steps as may be necessary 
for obtaining approvals, statutory, contractual or otherwise, in relation to the above and to settle all matters arising out of and 
incidental thereto, and to execute all deeds, applications, documents and writings that may be required, on behalf of the 
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company and generally to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things and to give such directions as may be necessary, proper and 
expedient or incidental for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution.”

“Resolved further that the Board be and is hereby authorized to delegate all or any of its powers to any Committee thereof as it 
may deem appropriate in this regard.”

9. Alteration of Clause V of Memorandum of Association of the Company, consequently reclassification of Capital of the 
Company by Sub-division (Stock Split)

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution, as a Special Resolution: 

“Resolved that pursuant to the provisions contained in Section 13, 61 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification(s), amendment or re-enactment thereof), the existing Clause V of the 
Memorandum of Association of the Company be and is hereby amended by deletion of the existing Clause V and by substitution 
thereof by the following clause: 

‘V. The Authorized Shares Capital of the Company is 21,25,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty One Crores Twenty Five Lakhs Only) 
divided into 21,25,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty One Crores Twenty Five Lakhs) Equity Shares of Re.1/- (Rupee One Only) each, 
with the rights, privileges and conditions attached thereto as are provided by regulations of the Company for the time being in 
force, with power to increase or reduce the Capital of the Company and to divide the shares in the capital for the time being into 
several classes and to attach thereto respectively such preferential rights, privileges or conditions as may be determined by or in 
accordance with the regulations of the Company and to vary, modify or abrogate any such rights, privileges or conditions in such 
manner as may for the time being be provided by the regulations of the Company.

“Resolved further that the Board of Directors or a Committee thereof be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, 
matters and things as may be considered necessary, desirable and expedient for giving effect to this resolution and/or otherwise 
considered by them in the best interest of the Company.”

10. Adoption of new set of Articles of Association of the Company in conformity with the Companies Act, 2013

To consider and, if thought fit, to give assent/dissent to the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

“Resolved that subject to the provisions of Section 14 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act 2013 read 
with the Companies (Incorporation) Rules 2014, including any statutory medication(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time in 
force, and subject to the approval(s) of the Registrar of Companies, and such other authorities, as may be applicable in this
regards, and subject to such terms, conditions, amendments or medications as may be required or suggested by such 
appropriate authorities which terms, conditions, amendments or medications the Board of   Directors of the Company is 
authorized to accept, as it may deem fit, the existing Articles of Association of the Company be and are hereby replaced with a 
new set of Articles of Association of the Company, in place of and in substitution and to the entire exclusion of the existing 
Articles of Association of the Company.” 

“Resolved further that for the purpose of giving effect to the aforesaid resolution, any of the Directors of the Company and/or 
the Company Secretary of the Company be and are hereby severally authorized to take such steps and to do all such other acts,
deeds, matters and things as may be necessary, proper, expedient, required or incidental thereto, in this regard including but not 
limited to ling requisite forms/applications/ reports, etc. with the statutory authorities

11. To make investments, give loans, guarantees and provide securities beyond the prescribed limits.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, if any, the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

“Resolved that pursuant to Section 186 and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, if any, and the rules 
framed there under (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), the 
provisions of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and other necessary approvals, if any, and to the 
extent required, the consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter 
referred to as “the Board”, which term shall include any of its duly authorized committees or one or more Directors) at its 
discretion to (i) give any loans to any person or other body corporate, or (ii) give any guarantees or to provide security in
connection with a loan to any other body corporate or person, or (iii) acquire by way of subscription, purchase or otherwise, the 
securities of any other body corporate exceeding sixty percent of Company’s paid up capital and its free reserves and securities 
premium account or one hundred percent of its free reserves and securities premium account, provided that the total loans or 
investments made, guarantees given, and securities provided shall not exceed an aggregate amount of Rs. 50 Crores.”

“Resolved further that the Board be and is hereby authorized to take all such actions and to give all such directions as may be 
necessary or desirable and also to settle any question or difficulty that may arise in regard to the proposed investments or loans 
or guarantees or securities and to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things and to execute all such deeds, documents and 
writings as may be necessary, desirable or expedient in connection.” 

12. To increase Borrowing Powers of the Board of Directors under Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 up to 
Rs. 50 Crores 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following Resolution as a Special Resolution:
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“Resolved That in suppression earlier resolution passed at General Meeting pursuant to the provisions of Section 180(1)(c) and 
other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made there under (including any statutory 
modification(s)or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), the consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the 
Board of Directors to borrow moneys in excess of the aggregate of the paid up share capital and free reserves of the Company, 
provided that the total amount borrowed and outstanding at any point of time, apart from temporary loans obtained/to be 
obtained from the Company’s Bankers in the ordinary course of business, shall not be in excess of Rs. 50 Crores (Rupees Fifty 
Crores) over and above the aggregate of the paid up share capital and free reserves of the Company.”

“Resolved Further That the Board of Directors may do all such acts, deeds and things as may be necessary or delegate the 
powers in respect thereof as permissible under applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.”

13. Creation of Security under Section 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 in connection with the borrowings of the 
Company 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following Resolution as a Special Resolution:-

“Resolved that pursuant to Section 180 (1) (a) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, and subject 
to other approvals, if applicable or required under any statute(s) / rule(s)/ regulation(s) or any law for the time being in force or 
required from any other concerned authorities and in supersession of all earlier Resolutions passed in this regard under the 
Companies Act (earlier in force),consent of the Company be and is hereby given to the Board of Directors of the Company 
(hereinafter referred to as “the Board” which term shall be deemed to include any Committee thereof) to create such charges, 
mortgages and hypothecations in addition to the existing charges, mortgages and hypothecations created by the Company, on 
such movable and immovable properties, both present and future, and in such manner as the Board may deem fit, together with 
power to take over the substantial assets of the Company in certain events in favor of banks/financial institutions, other 
investing agencies and trustees for the holders of debentures/ bonds/other instruments to the debenture/ bonds issued or 
proposed to be issued, loan and /or other credit facilities availed or proposed to be availed together with interest thereon and 
such other costs, charges, expenses and other moneys payable by the Company as per the terms and conditions of the issue of 
bonds/debentures issued/ proposed to be issued or the loan agreement and/or other documents pertaining to credit facilities 
entered into or proposed to be entered into by the Company, within the overall borrowing limits fixed pursuant to Section 
180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013.” 

“Resolved further that for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution, the Board or any Committee thereof be and is hereby 
authorized to finalize, settle and execute such documents /deeds / writings / papers / agreements as may be required and to do 
all such acts, deeds, matters and things, as it may in its absolute discretion deem necessary, proper or desirable and to settle any 
question, difficulty or doubt that may arise in regard to creation of mortgage / charge as aforesaid.”

REGISTERED OFFICE BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
C-17, Ground Floor, 
Laxmi Nagar, Nanakpura,
Delhi - 110092 Sd/-

Tejas Hingu
Date: 16/07/2015 (Director)
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Notes:

1. Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to the Special Business to be 
transacted at the meeting is attached hereto.

2. A MEMBER IS ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY AND VOTE INSTEAD 
OF HIMSELF/HERSELF AND A PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. A PERSON CAN ACT AS PROXY ON 
BEHALF OF MEMBERS UPTO AND NOT EXCEEDING FIFTY AND HOLDING IN THE AGGREGATE NOT MORE THAN TEN 
PERCENT OF THE TOTAL SHARE CAPTIAL OF THE COMPANY. FURTHER, MEMBER HOLDING MORE THAN TEN PERCENT OF 
THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS MAY APPOINT A SINGLE PERSON AS PROXY 
AND SUCH PERSON MAY NOT ACT AS A PROXY FOR ANY OTHER PERSON OR MEMBER. THE INSTRUMENT APPOINTING 
PROXY MUST BE DEPOSITED AT THE REGISTERD OFFICE OF THE COMPNAY NOT LESS THAN 48 HOURS BEFORE THE TIME 
OF HOLDING THE MEETING.

3. Corporate Members are requested to send in advance duly certified copy of Board Resolution / power of attorney 
authorizing their representative to attend the annual general meeting.

4. Members/ proxies are requested to bring their copies of annual reports and the attendance slip duly completed and signed at 
the meeting, quote their respective folio numbers or DP ID and Client ID numbers for easy identification of their attendance 
at the meeting.

5. Pursuant to section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013 The Register of Members and the Transfer Book of the Company will 
remain closed from 13/08/2015 to 14/08/2015 (both days inclusive).

6. The Securities & Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every 
participant in securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form, are, therefore requested to submit their PAN to 
their Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their Demat Account. Members holding their shares in 
Physical Form can submit their PAN details to the share transfer agent (M/s. Skyline Financial Services Private Ltd) of the 
Company.

7. Members are requested to notify immediately any change in their address details to the Company’s Registrar and share 
transfer agents for shares held in demat/physical form at: M/s. Skyline Financial Services Private Ltd, at D-153, 1st Floor, 
Okhala Industrial Area, Phase -I, new Delhi- 110020

8. Pursuant to the provisions of Sections 101 and 136 of the Act read with ‘The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014’ electronic 
copy of the Annual Report for financial year 2014-2015 along with Notice of 30th Annual General Meeting of the company 
(including the Attendance Slip & Proxy Form) is being sent to all the members whose email id is registered with the 
Registrar/Depository Participant(s) unless any member has requested for a hard copy of the same. For members who have 
not registered their e mail address, physical copies of the Annual Report for the financial year 2014-2015 along with the 
notice of the 30th Annual general Meeting of the Company inter-alia  indicating the process and manner of e-voting along 
with Attendance Slip and Proxy Forms is being sent by other permissible modes.

9. Electronic copy of the Notice convening the 30th Annual General Meeting of the Company inter alia indicating the process and 
manner of e-voting along with Attendance Slip and Proxy Form is being sent to all the members who hold shares in 
dematerialized mode and whose email addresses are registered with their respective Depository Participants. For those 
members who have not registered their email address, physical copies of the said Notice inter alia indicating the process and
manner of e-voting along with attendance slip and proxy form is being sent in the permitted mode.

10. Members may also note that the Notice of the 30th Annual General Meeting and the Annual Report for 2014-2015 will also be 
available on the Company’s website www.ojasltd.com, which can be downloaded from the site. The physical copies of the 
aforesaid documents will also be available at the Company’s registered office in Mumbai for inspection during normal 
business hours on all the working days except Saturdays.

11. During the period beginning 24 hours before the time fixed for commencement of the meeting and ending with the 
conclusion of the meeting, members would be entitled to inspect the proxies lodged, at any time during the business hours of 
the Company, provided not less than 3 days’ written notice is given to the Company.

12. Brief details of the Directors, who are seeking appointment / re-appointment, are annexed hereto as per the requirements of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

13. The Company has paid the annual listing fees for the financial year 2015-16 to BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of 
India Limited.

14. Members holding the equity shares under multiple folios in identical order of names are requested to consolidate their 
holdings into one folio.

15. Procedure and Instruction for E-Voting

In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Act, Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 
2014 and Clause 35B of the Listing Agreement, the Company provides to its members, the facility to exercise their right to vote 



Annual Report 2014-15 Ojas Asset Reconstruction Co. Ltd

9

on resolutions proposed to be considered at the Thirtieth Annual General Meeting (AGM) by electronic means and the business 
may be transacted through e-voting services. The facility of casting the votes by the members using an electronic voting system 
from a place other than venue of the AGM (“remote e-voting”) will be provided by National Securities Depository Limited 
(NSDL).

The facility for voting through ballot paper shall also be made available at the AGM and the members  attending the meeting shall 
be able to exercise their right to vote at the meeting through ballot paper  in case they have not casted their vote by remote e-
voting.

The members who have casted their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also attend the AGM but shall not be entitled 
to cast their vote again.

a. The instructions for e-voting are as under:

i. Members whose e-mail addresses are registered with the company/Depository Participant(s) will receive an e-mail from 
NSDL informing the User-ID and Password.

1. Open e-mail and open PDF file viz; “OARCL e-voting.pdf” with your client ID or Folio No. as password. The said PDF file 
contains your user ID and password for e-voting. Please note the password is an initial password.

2. Launch internet browser by typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/

3. Click on shareholder- Login

4. Insert user ID and password and initial password noted in step 1 above. Click Login

5. Password change menu appears. Change the password with new password of your choice with minimum 8 
digits/characters or combination thereof. Note new password. It is strongly recommended not to share your password 
with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

6. Home page of e-voting opens. Click on e-voting. Active e-voting cycles.

7. Select “EVEN” of Ojas Asset Reconstruction Company Limited

8. Now you are ready for e-voting and cast vote page opens.

9. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate option and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted.

10. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote caste successfully” will be displayed.

11. Once you have voted on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

12. For the votes to be considered valid, the institutional shareholder(s) i.e. other than individuals , HUF, NRI, etc. are 
required to send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution /authorization letter etc. together 
with attested specimen signature of the authorized signatory /signatories who are authorized to vote, to the scrutinizer 
via e-mail ojasassetltd@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in.

ii. For members whose email IDs are not registered with the company/ Depository participant(s) who receive physical ballot 
forms, the following instructions may be noted:

a. The initial password is provided at the bottom of the Postal Ballot Form
b. Please follow all the steps from 1 to 12 mentioned above, to cast your vote.

iii. In case of any queries you may refer to the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) and e-voting user manual for Members 
available in the ‘Downloads’ section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or contact NSDL by email at evoting@nsdl.co.in

iv. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, 
you will need to go through the ‘Forgot password’ option available on the site to reset the password.

v. If you are already registered with NSDL for e-voting, then you can use your existing user ID and password for casting your 
vote.

vi. The e-voting period commences on Friday 21/08/2015 at 9:00 A.M. and ends on Sunday, 23/08/2015 at 5:00 P.M. During this 
period, members of the company holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cutoff / relevant 
date i.e. Monday, 17/08/2015 may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting 
thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by a member, he or she will not be allowed to change it subsequently.

vii. Any person, who becomes a member of the Company after dispatch of the Notice of AGM and holding shares as of the cut-off 
date i.e., August 17, 2015, may obtain the login ID and password by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or 
ojasassetltd@gmail.com. However, if such member is already registered with NSDL for remote e-voting then he/she/it can use 
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his/her/its existing user ID and password for casting the vote. The facility to reset the forgotten password is also provided by
NSDL by using “Forgot User Details/Password” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

viii. A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of beneficial owners maintained by the 
depositories as on the cut-off date, viz., August 17, 2015 only shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting as well as 
voting at the AGM through ballot paper.

ix. Mr. Manish Kankani, Chartered Accountant, (Membership No. 158020), Partner of M/s. DMKH & CO., Chartered Accountants, 
Mumbai has been appointed as the Scrutinizer by the Board of Directors of the Company to scrutinize the voting and e-voting 
process in a fair and transparent manner.

x. The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, will first count the votes cast at the meeting and thereafter  
unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in the presence of at least two witnesses not in the employment of the 
Company and shall make, not later than three days of the conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated Scrutiniser’s report of the total 
votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or a person authorised by the Chairman in writing, who shall 
countersign the same and declare the result of the voting forthwith.

xi. The Results declared along with the report of the Scrutinizer will be placed on the website of the Company www.ojasltd.com
and on the website of NSDL immediately after the declaration of results by the Chairman or by a person duly authorised. The 
results shall also be immediately forwarded to the National Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited, where the 
equity shares of the Company are listed.

REQUEST TO MEMBERS

Members are requested to send their question(s), if any, relating to the financial statements, shareholding, etc., to the 
Company Secretary/Chief Financial Officer at the Registered Office of the Company, on or before August 20, 2015, so 
that the answers/details can be kept ready at the Annual General Meeting.
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Explanatory Statement Pursuant to Section 102 of the companies Act, 2013

Item No. 3: 

M/s. A M A A & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Delhi have resigned from the office of Statutory Auditors of the Company due 
to their pre-occupations, resulting into a casual vacancy in the office of Statutory Auditors of the Company as envisaged by 
section 139(8) of the Act. Any casual vacancy caused by resignation in the office of the Statutory Auditors could be filled up by 
the Company in General Meeting as per recommendations made by the Audit Committee and Board of Directors in this regard. 
The Audit Committee and the Board of Directors in their respective meetings held on 25th May, 2015 have recommended 
appointing M/s. DMKH & Co., a Mumbai based firm of Chartered Accountants as Statutory Auditors of the Company to fill the 
casual vacancy caused by the resignation of M/s. A M A A & Associates, Chartered Accountants to conduct Audit for F.Y. 2014-15.

M/s. DMKH & Co., Chartered Accountants, have conveyed their consent to be appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company 
along with confirmation that, their appointment, if approved by the shareholders, would be within the limits prescribed under 
the Act. 

Accordingly, the Special Resolution set out in item no. 3 embodied in the Notice is proposed by the Board of Directors for 
consideration and approval of the shareholders. 

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Persons of the Company or their relatives, is in any way, concerned or interested in the 
resolution.

Item No. 4: 

Based on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors, at its meeting held on 
20/01/2015, appointed Mr. Pravin Kamble as an additional director (Independent) under Section 161(1) of the Act read.
Accordingly, Mr. Pravin Kamble holds office as a director up to the date of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. It is 
proposed to appoint him as a Non-executive and Independent Director of the Company for five consecutive years with effect 
from 20/01/2015in terms of Section 149 of the Act.

The Company has received a notice along with the deposit of requisite amount under Section 160 of the Act from Mr. Pravin 
Kamble, proposing his candidature ship for the office of a director of the Company. Mr. Pravin Kamble has confirmed to the 
Board that he qualifies to be an independent director within the meaning of Clause 49(II)(B)(1) and Section 149(6) of the Act
read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014. In the opinion of the Board, Mr. 
Pravin Kamble fulfils the conditions specified in the Act and Rules made there under for his appointment as an Independent 
Director of the Company.

The Board of Director is of the opinion that Mr. Pravin Kamble, possesses requisite skills, experience and knowledge relevant to 
the company’s business and it would be in the interest of the company to continue to have his association with the company as 
director. Accordingly, the Board recommends the passing of the Ordinary Resolution proposed at item no. 4 of the Notice. 

Brief profile of Mr. Pravin Kamble and the disclosures required under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement are given as additional
information about the directors, which forms part of the Notice.

None of the Directors/Key Managerial Personnel of the Company/ their relatives, except Mr. Pravin Kamble, is in any way, 
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at item no. 4 of the Notice. 

Item No. 5: 

Based on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors, at its meeting held on 
05/02/2015, appointed Mrs. Priya Khagram as an additional director (Independent) under Section 161(1) of the Act read.
Accordingly, Mrs. Priya Khagram holds office as a director up to the date of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. It is 
proposed to appoint him as a Non-executive and Independent Director of the Company for five consecutive years with effect 
from 05/02/2015 in terms of Section 149 of the Act.

The Company has received a notice along with the deposit of requisite amount under Section 160 of the Act from Mrs. Priya 
Khagram her candidature ship for the office of a director of the Company. Mrs. Priya Khagram has confirmed to the Board that he 
qualifies to be an independent director within the meaning of Clause 49(II)(B)(1) and Section 149(6) of the Act read with Rule 5 
of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014. In the opinion of the Board, Mrs. Priya Khagram
fulfils the conditions specified in the Act and Rules made there under for his appointment as an Independent Director of the 
Company. 

The Board of Director is of the opinion that Mrs. Priya Khagram, possesses requisite skills, experience and knowledge relevant to 
the company’s business and it would be in the interest of the company to continue to have his association with the company as
director. Accordingly, the Board recommends the passing of the Ordinary Resolution proposed at item no. 4 of the Notice. 

Brief profile of Mrs. Priya Khagram and the disclosures required under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement are given as 
additional information about the directors, which forms part of the Notice.
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None of the Directors/Key Managerial Personnel of the Company/ their relatives, except Mrs. Priya Khagram, is in any way, 
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at item no. 5 of the Notice. 

Item No. 6: 

The Board of Directors at their meeting held on 16/07/2015 have subject to such consents, approvals and permissions as may 
be required including that of members in the ensuing general meeting and subject to the provisions of the Articles of Association 
of the Company, appointed Mr. Tejas Hingu as the Whole time Director of the Company for a period of period of 3 (three) years 
with effect from 16/07/2015 to 15/07/2018 on the remuneration of Rs. 12,00,000 (Rupees Twelve Lacs only) per annum. In 
case, the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, then the remuneration shall be paid to him with the prior 
approval of the Central Government or in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule V of the 
Act. Following are the details of the annual salary proposed to be paid to Mr. Tejas Hingu, Whole Time Director. The Consolidated 
Salary, Perquisites and Performance Bonus, etc: ` Rs.12,00,000/- (Rupees Twelve Lacs only) annually. 
Your Directors, therefore, recommend the resolution for your approval set out at item no. 6 of the Notice. 

None of the Directors/Key Managerial Personnel of the Company/ their relatives, except Mr. Tejas Hingu, is in any way, 
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at item no. 6 of the Notice. 

Item No. 7: 

The Members are hereby informed that the in order to diversify the business of the company, it is required to commence the 
businesses mentioned in other objects clause in the Memorandum of Association of the company. Your company always wanted 
to diversify its business line in to profitable segment. Your Company has been successful in establishment of new segment of 
business of trading, manufacturing of Agricultural and Textile products and services. He further informed that as per the Clause 
13 and 21 of the Memorandum of Association the other objects of the Company inter-alia include trading, manufacturing of 
Agricultural and Textile products and services, and other allied activities, etc. However, the same is not included in the main 
objects and as per the provisions of the Companies Act. 2013 a Public Limited Company can commence any business mentioned 
in its other objects after taking the approval of the Board in this regard. 

The Board of Directors of the Company on 22/12/2014, approved the above matter. Commencement of new business requires 
approval of shareholders by passing the special resolution in the General Meeting. The members are, therefore, requested to 
accord their approval for commencing the businesses as set out in the resolution.

None of the Directors/Key Managerial Personnel of the Company/ their relatives is in any way, concerned or interested, 
financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at item no. 7 of the Notice. 

Item No. 8: 

The equity shares of the Company are listed on BSE Limited (BSE). In order to improve the liquidity of the Company’s shares at 
the stock exchange with higher floating stock in absolute numbers and to make it more affordable for the small retail investors 
having interest, able to invest in the Company’s equity shares. The board of Directors of the company, in its meeting held on 
16/07/2015, have approved the sub division of the nominal value of equity share of the company of Rs. 10/- each into smaller 
denomination of Rs. 1/- each, subject to the approval of Members and all concerned Statutory Authority(ies). 

The shareholders may please note that presently the nominal value of each equity share of the Company is Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten 
Only) per share and consequent upon the sub-division it is being divided into 10 (Ten) equity shares of Re.1/- (Rupee One Only) 
each. The date on which this sub-division would become effective, will be decided by the Board after obtaining the shareholder’s 
approval, which will be notified through the Stock Exchanges. 

As per the provisions of Section 61 of the Companies Act 2013, approval of the Shareholders is required for sub-division of 
shares. Therefore, the said resolution is being put up before you for your approval. Your Directors recommend the above 
Resolution for your approval. 

None of the Directors of the Company are in any way interested in the Resolution, except of their shareholding and the 
shareholding of their relatives in the Company.

Item No. 9: 

The existing Clause V of Memorandum of Association specifies the present Authorized Share Capital of your Company. In view of 
sub-division in the nominal value of the equity shares from Rs. 10/- ( Rupees Ten Only) per share to Re. 1/- (Rupee One Only) 
per share, the present Clause V of the Memorandum of Association is required to be altered to reflect the subdivision of the 
equity shares. 

A copy of the existing Memorandum and Articles of Association as well as the specimen of the amended Memorandum and 
Articles of Association of the Company is available for inspection by members at the Registered Office of the Company on any 
working day during working hours between 11a.m. to 1 p.m. 

As per the provisions of Section 13 of the Companies Act, 2013, approval of the Shareholders is required for amending the 
Memorandum of Association of the Company. Accordingly, this resolution is being put before the shareholders for their 
permission on the same. Your Directors recommend the above Resolution for your approval. 
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None of the Directors of the Company are in any way interested in the Resolution, except to the extent of their shareholding and 
the shareholding of their relatives in the Company

Item No. 10: 

With the enactment of the Companies Act, 2013, there are several articles in the Articles of Association (“AOA”) of the Company 
which are based on the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and which require alteration/deletion. Hence it is proposed to 
adopt a new set of AoA to replace the existing AOA so that the same is in line with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The 
draft AOA is available for inspection to the shareholders at the registered office of the Company on all working days from 11.00 
am to 1.00 pm except Saturday and Sunday, till the last date for receipt of postal ballot forms without payment of any fees by the 
shareholders. The Board of Directors recommends there solution for approval of members of the Company at item No. 7 as a 
special resolution. 

None of the Directors, any other Key Managerial Person(s) of the Company and their relatives are, in any way, concerned or 
interested in the said resolution. 

Item No. 11: 

The Company has made investments and loans from time to time. In this regard, it is proposed to authorize the Board of 
Directors of the Company to invest into securities of anybody corporate and/or make loan(s) and/or give any 
guarantee(s)/provide any security(ies) in connection with loan(s) made up to Rs. 50 Crores (Rupees Fifty Crores Only). The 
investments of funds etc. may require restructuring / conversion with the changed business environment. 

As per section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, where a Company make investment in shares, debentures, securities of other 
body corporate and/or provide loan etc and such investments etc are in excess of 60% of the paid up Share Capital, Free 
Reserves and Securities Premium Account of the Company or 100% of Free Reserves and Securities Premium Account of the 
Company whichever is more as prescribed under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under, from 
time to time in one or more tranches, approval by way of Special Resolution of the shareholders is required. It is proposed to 
authorize up to a maximum amount of Rs. 50 Crores notwithstanding that investments along with company’s existing loans or 
guarantee(s)/ security(ies) or investments shall be in excess of the limits prescribed under Section 186 aforesaid.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their respective relatives are concerned or interested in 
the proposed resolutions.

The passing of the aforesaid resolutions does not relate to or affect any other Company.

Item No. 12 & 13: 

Section 180(1)(c ) of the Companies Act, 2013, gives powers to the Board of Directors’ of the Company to borrow monies up to 
Rs. 50 Crores under Section 293(1)(d) of the Companies Act, 1956, as well as- to secure the same by suitable mortgage/ charge 
on all or any of the moveable and / or immovable properties, regarded as disposal of the Company’s undertakings under Section 
293 (1)(a) of the Companies Act, 1956. However, as per the corresponding provisions of section 180(1)(c) and 180(1)(a) of the
Companies Act, 2013 which were notified on 12th September, 2013 and based on the clarification thereof issued by GOI, MCA 
vide General Circular no. 04/2014 dated 25th March, 2014, the Resolution(s) passed u/s 293 of the Companies Act, 1956 prior to 
12.9.2013 with reference to borrowings (subject to the limits prescribed) and/ or creation of security on assets of the company 
will be regarded as sufficient compliance of the requirements of section 180 of the new Act, for a period of 1 year from the date 
of notification of 180. Further, the provisions of the Companies 1956 Act required consent of the shareholders as an ordinary 
resolution for both borrowing and creation of security; however, the provisions of the 2013 Act stipulate consent of members by 
way of a Special Resolution.

The Board of Directors of your Company has approved this item in the Board Meeting held on 16/07/2015 and recommends the 
Resolutions as set out in the accompanying Notice for the approval of members of the Company as Special Resolutions.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives is concerned or interested in the 
Resolutions except to the extent of their shareholding in the Company, if any.
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS SEEKING RE-APPOINTMENT/APPOINTMENT AT THE 
THIRTIETH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING PURSUANT TO CLAUSE 49 OF THE LISTING AGREEMENT AS 
ON MARCH 31, 2015

Details of directors seeking appointment and re-appointment at the ensuring Annual General Meeting (as per Clause 49 of the 
Listing Agreement with the stock exchange)

Sr. 
No

Name of the Directors Mr. Tejas Hingu Mrs. Priya Khagram Mr. Pravin Kamble

1 Date of Birth 09/09/1986 01/01/1961 20/02/1984

2 Age 29 Years 54 Years 31 years

3 Date of Appointment 22/12/2014 12/02/2015 20/01/2015

4 PAN ACHPH4308K CCZPK9080M CBKPK5026M

5 DIN 06936684 07250030 07016322

6 No. of Equity shares held in the 
company (as on 31.03.2015)

Nil Nil Nil

7 Qualifications B.Com, Inter CA Undergraduate Graduate

8 Brief Profile Mr. Tejas Hingu is 
Commerce Graduate from 
Mumbai University; he is 
also perusing the MBA in 
Finance from IGNU and 
Chartered Accountancy 
from The Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of 
India. He has the 
experience of more than 
year for managing the 
Company. He has also 
managed the other Public 
Listed Company, as 
Director and CFO of the 
Company. He joined 
management team in 
January 2015 and was in 
charge of Finance 
operation. has an 
extensive background and 
experience in Finance, 
Banking, Strategic 
Planning and 
International Business 
Relations. His experience 
gained during his 
academic & professional 
career is very useful & 
helping in development & 
expansion of business.

Mrs. Priya Khagram, in 
spite of her basic 
education she posses 
good knowledge, skill, 
and ability required to 
lead as the company 
Human Resources and 
Excellent interpersonal 
and coaching skills, 
Demonstrated ability to 
lead and develop Human 
Resources staff 
members.

Mr. Pravin Kamble is 
having good Accounting 
and Financial 
knowledge, has rich 
experience of having 
worked in Private and 
Public Companies. 

9 List of other Directorships
(excluding Foreign Company)

Nil Nil 1. Skandguru Builder Pvt
Ltd

10 Membership/Chairmanship of 
other Public Companies 
(includes only Audit Committee 
and Stakeholder Relationship 
Committee)

Nil Nil Nil

11 Relationships, if any between 
Directors, interest.

No No No
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Board Of Director’s Report
Dear Members,

Your Directors are pleased to present the 30th Annual Report together with the Audited Statement of Accounts for the year 
ended 31st March, 2015. The Management Discussion & Analysis is also incorporated into this Report.

Financial Results:

Summary of the Company’s financial performance for F.Y. 2014-2015 as compared to the previous financial year is given below:
                                 

      (Figures in Lacs)

Particulars F.Y. 2014 – 2015 F.Y. 2013 – 2014

Revenue from operations 1583.47 19.78

Revenue  from Other Income 128.21 -

Total Revenue 1711.68 19.78

Profit/Loss before Depreciation & Interest (8.67) 3.12

Depreciation & Amortization - 2.48

Interest Coast 2.81 0.31

Profit/Loss After Depreciation & Interest (11.48) 2.81

Provision for Tax - -

Income Tax - (0.96)

TDS W/off - -

Profit After Tax (11.48) 1.84

EPS -0.05 0.01

Highlights:

During the year your company has its turnover to Rs.1711.68 Lacs including other income as compared to Rs.19.78 Lacs in the 
previous year and thereby registering an increase of 8653.59% as compared to the previous year. The Turnover of the Company 
has increased because the Company has diversified its business in to dealer of fabrics and textile products along with Share 
Trading and Finance. In spite of this company has occurred the Net loss of Rs. (11.48) Lacs against the Net profit of Rs.1.84 Lacs 
in the previous year. This mainly because of high administrative and running cost valuation of the stock as on 31.03.2015 has
been gone down.

Considering the expectations of country's gradual improvement in effective demand and GDP growth rate coupled with upward 
movements in capital market, your Directors expect better performance of the Company in the coming years.

Dividend:

In view of losses during the year, your Directors have not recommended any dividend on Equity Shares for the year under 
review. 

Board of Directors:

During the year 2014-2015 the Management of the Company has totally changed Mr. Tejas Hingu was appointed as the Director 
of the company in the executive category w.e.f 22/12/2014 and Mr. Pravin Kamble and Mrs. Priya Khagram was appointed as the 
Additional Director of the company in Independent Category w.e.f 20/01/2015 and 12/02/2015 respectively and holds office as 
Additional Directors until the Thirtieth Annual General Meeting, and is eligible for appointment as a Directors.

Ms. Deepti Lalwani and Mr. Ashwani Dewan from the post of Directorship of the company w.e.f 20/01/2015 and Mrs. Beena 
Agrawal had also resigned from the post of Whole Time Directorship of the company w.e.f 22/12/2014 due to their pre-
occupation somewhere else. The Board of Directors of the Company appreciates the Contributions made by them during their 
tenure of Directorship.

The Board also recommended to Appoint Mr. Tejas Hingu, as a Whole Time Director of the Company, to comply with Section 203 
of the Companies Act, 2013, though appointed as Whole Time Director for fix term of 3 will retire by rotation as a Director, to 
enable compliance by the Company with the provisions of Section 152 of the Act, and being eligible, has offered himself for re-
appointment at the Thirtieth Annual General Meeting.
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Declarations Given By Independent Directors

All the Non-Executive and Independent Directors have confirmed to the Board that they qualify to be considered as independent
as per the definition of ‘Independent Director’ stipulated in Section 149(6) of the Act and Clause 49(II)(B)(1) of the Listing
Agreement. These confirmations have been placed before, and noted by the Board.

Policies on Directors’ Appointment and Remuneration

The policies of the Company on Directors’ appointment and remuneration including criteria for determining qualifications,
positive attributes, independence of a Director and other matters provided under sub-section (3) of Section 178 of the Act is 
appended as Annexure I (a) & (b) to this Report.

Evaluation of Board Of Directors

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of
the Board carried out the annual evaluation of the performance of the Board as a whole, the Directors individually as well as of 
various Committees of the Board. The performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried out by the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee and noted in turn by the Board.

Deposits:

Your Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Section 73 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement:

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134 (3) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013, and based on the information provided by 
management, your Directors’ state that:

1. In the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31st March, 2015 the applicable accounting 
standards have been followed.

2. Accounting policies selected were applied consistently. Reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates were made 
so as to give a true and fair view of the State of affairs of the corporation as at the end of March 31, 2015 and of the 
profit of the Company for the year ended on that date.

3. Proper and sufficient care to the best of their knowledge and ability for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and 
for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

4. The Annual Accounts of the Company have been prepared on the ongoing concern basis. 

Shifting of Registered Office:

During the year under consideration, as the members are aware, that your Company’s registered office had been shifted from the 
State of Delhi to State of Maharashtra, to carry out business more efficiently and economically and for better administration and 
running of business of the Company, for which approval of the members taken through duly conveyed General Meeting held on 
24/08/2014. However the application/petition for shifting of registered office from the State of Delhi to State of Maharashtra is 
still pending before ROC, Delhi.

During the year your Company has also shifted its registered office within the local limit from -102, Jhule Lal Apartment, 
Pitampura, Delhi – 110034 To C-17, Ground Floor, Nanakpura, Laxmi Nagar, Delhi – 110092 w.e.f 28/08/2014.

Statutory Auditors:

M/s. DMKH & Co., Chartered Accountants having Registration No: 116886W statutory auditors of the Company hold office until 
the conclusion of the ensuring AGM and are eligible for re-appointment. based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, 
the Board of Directors has, at its meeting held on 16/07/2015 proposed the appointment of M/s. DMKH & Co., as the Statutory 
Auditors of the Company for a consecutive period of five years to hold office from the conclusion of this AGM till the conclusion 
of the 35th AGM of the Company to be held in the year 2020 (subject to ratification of their appointment at every AGM).

During the year M/s. A A M A & Associates, have been resigned as a Statutory Auditors of the Company, resulting in to casual 
vacancy of Auditors, in M/s DMKH & Co., has been appointed in place of M/s. A A M A & Associates w.e.f 25th May, 2015 and 
Company hereby seeks approval of the members of the Company to ratify the appointment of M/s DMKH & Co., within 3 months 
of their appointment.

The Company has also received the confirmation from M/s. DMKH & Co., to the effect that their appointment if made at the 
ensuring AGM would be in terms of Section 139 and 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under.
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Auditors report:

Observations made in the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory and therefore do not call for any further comments under 
Section 134(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Secretarial Audit

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 204(1) of the Act, and Rule 9 of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed M/s. P.D. Pandya & Associates, Company Secretary in Practice to
conduct the Secretarial Audit for the financial year 2014-15. The Secretarial Audit Report as received from M/s. P.D. Pandya & 
Associates is appended to this Report as Annexure II.

Comments on Auditors’ Report

There are no qualifications, reservations, adverse remarks or disclaimers made by M/s. DMKH & Co., Statutory Auditors, in their 
Audit Report. However they drawn the attention of the Management of the Company towards non-compliance of Section 203 (i.e. 
the Company does not had Company Secretary and Chief Financial Officer as on date.

M/s. P.D. Pandya and Associates, Company Secretary in Practice, in his Secretarial Audit Report for financial year 2014-15 have 
drawn the attention of the management on some the non-compliances, which have been marked as qualification in his report. In 
connection with the same management herewith give the explanation for the same as follow:  

The Company is of view that though the Company does not have Company Secretary on role of the Company as on date. The 
Company has tried to appoint the Company Secretary but did not found the desired candidate as per company’s requirement. 
The Company for that purpose out sourced the Secretarial work to the Professional Company Secretaries Firm. The Company is 
highly Compliance Company and always believe in high Corporate Governance, The Company is regular in making all required 
notices, disclosures, announcements, Compliances, filing with the Exchanges, ROC, Income Tax and other concerned Authorities. 
However Company is still looking for the Company Secretary and Chief Financial Officer, who can easily cope up with Company’s 
requirements. The Management ensures that the same has been complied as soon as possible. 

The size of the Company is very small as compared to its peer group companies, the Company has also established Risk 
Management Policy in place to mitigate unforeseeable risks and frauds. The management things that Company has adequate 
internal control system commensurate with the size of the Company and the Statutory Auditor also conduct test audit on 
quarterly basis and submit the limited review certificate and draws the attention of the management on concerned matters. 
However the Management also ensures to strengthen the Internal Control System of the Company and shortly appoint the 
Internal Auditor for conducting periodic internal audit in compliance of Section 138 of Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has incorporated with the Main Objects of doing business of Securitization / Reconstruction of Assets and Finance 
and Investments. However the Company never commenced or conducted the said business since its inception till date neither 
wants to do in future as well. The management of the Company is also having insight to completely diversify its business line by 
bringing change in its main object. Therefore the Company never approached the RBI to obtain Certificate of Registration as per 
regulation 3 of The Securitization and Reconstruction of Financial Assets and Enforcement of Security Interest (SARFAESI) Act 
2002. However the Company to make good of this default also diversified its business activity into Textile Business and more 
than 50% of the revenue is being generated from Textile Business.

As the members of the Company are aware that your Company had passed resolution for shifting of registered office of the 
Company from the State of Delhi to the State of Maharashtra through General Meeting, instead off Postal Ballot as per 110 
Companies act 2013. Since it is an established practice in Delhi which allows companies to shift its office from one state to 
another state through general meeting without opting postal ballot and As per General Circular No. 20/2014 dated 17th June, 
2014 of Ministry of Corporate Affairs, which has mandate the requirement of E-Voting optional for the Company till 31st

December, 2014 under the plea of the said circular Company has conducted general meeting through traditional voting system 
instead of e-voting.

Reports on Corporate Governance and Management Discussion & Analysis

The reports on Corporate Governance and Management Discussion and Analysis for the year under review, as stipulated under 
Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement form part of the Annual Report. The certificate from the Auditors of the Company confirming 
compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance is annexed to the Corporate Governance Report.

Particulars of Contracts or Arrangements with Related Parties

The particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in Section 188(1), as prescribed in Form AOC - 2 
are appended as Annexure III.

Extract of Annual Return

Pursuant to the requirements under Section 92(3) and Section 134(3) of the Act read with Rule 12 of Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014, an extract of Annual Return in prescribed Form MGT-9 is given in the Report as Annexure IV.
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Particulars of Employees and Related Information

In terms of the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, a statement containing the disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as
required under the Act and the above Rules are provided in the Annual Report. The disclosures as specified under Rule 5(1) of
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, have been appended to this Report as
Annexure IV.

Board meetings:

The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on the company’s policies and strategy apart from other Board 
matters. During the Financial year 2014-2015 12 times board meetings were held on 15/04/2014, 12/05/2014, 30/05/2014, 
14/07/2014, 01/08/2014, 28/08/2014, 14/11/2014, 22/12/2014, 02/01/2015, 20/01/2015, 05/02/2015 and 12/05/2015. 
The gap between two meetings did not exceed 120 days.

Board Committees:

Your Company has three Committees of Board, viz,
1. Audit Committee
2. Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee
3. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Details of all the Committees along with their composition, terms of reference and meetings held during the year are provided in 
‘Report on Corporate Governance’ forming part of the Annual Report.

Postal Ballot:

No postal ballot was held during the year 2014-2015.

Risk Management and Internal Controls:

The Company has the risk management and internal control framework in place commensurate with the size of the Company. 
However Company is trying to strengthen the same. The details of the risks faced by the Company and the mitigation thereof are 
discussed in detail in the Management Discussion and Analysis report that forms part of the Annual Report.

Conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption:

The particulars under the companies (Disclosure of Particulars in the Report of Board of Directors) Rules 1988, on conservation 
of energy and Technology absorption is not applicable.

Foreign Exchange:  

There is no inflow and outflow of Foreign Exchange.

Listing of Shares:

The Shares of the Company are listed on Delhi Stock Exchange (DSE). However The Delhi Stock Exchange has applied to the SEBI 
for Exit under Exit of De-recognized/Non-Operational Stock Exchanges. The Company got it shares listed on Bombay Stock 
Exchange under Direct Listing Norms w.e.f August 21, 2014. 

The Company has paid the necessary Listing fees for the year 2015 – 2016 to Bombay Stock Exchange.

Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy:

The Company has established a vigil mechanism to provide appropriate avenues to the Directors and employees to bring to the 
attention of the Management, the concerns about behavior of employees that raise concerns including fraud by using the
mechanism provided in the Whistle Blower Policy. The details of the said Policy are included in the Report on Corporate 
Governance which forms part of the Annual Report.

During the financial year 2014-15, no cases under this mechanism were reported in the Company and any of its subsidiaries/ 
associates.

Policy for Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace:

The company has framed policy in accordance with The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition 
and Redressal) Act, 2013.

During the financial year 2014-15, no cases in the nature of sexual harassment were reported at any workplace of the company.
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Green Initiative in Corporate Governance:

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (vide circular nos.17/2011 and 18/2011 dated April 21 and April 29, 2011 respectively), has 
undertaken ‘Green initiative in corporate Governance’ and allowed companies to share documents with its shareholders through 
an electronic mode.

Members are requested to support their green initiative by registering/updating their email addresses, in respect of shares held 
in dematerialized form with their respective depository participants and in respect of shares held in physical form with 
Companies RTA.

Management Discussion and Analysis Report:

Further, a separate Management Discussion and Analysis Report covering a wide range of issues relating to Industry Trends, 
Company Performance, SWOT analysis, Corporate Process, Business Outlook among others is annexed to this Report.

Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO) Certification:

The Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer Certification as required under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreements and 
Chief Executive Officer declaration about the Code of Conduct is Annexed to this Report.

Acknowledgement:

The Board of Directors wishes to express sincere thanks to Bankers, Shareholders, clients, Financial Institutions, customers, sup-
pliers and employees of Companies for extending support during the year.

For and On behalf of the Board

Sd/- Sd/-
Tejas Hingu Shashikumar Jatwal
(Director) (Director)

Date: 16/07/2015
Place: Delhi
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Evaluation mechanism:

(1) The performance evaluation of independent directors shall be done by the entire Board of Directors, excluding the 
director being evaluated

(2) On the basis of the report of performance evaluation, it shall be determined whether to extend or continue the term of 
appointment of the independent director.

Criteria for determination of Remuneration of Directors

The Non-executive Directors and Independent Directors will receive remuneration by way of sitting fees for attending meetings 
of the Board and/or Committee thereof, as decided by the Board from time to time subject to the limits specified under the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) including any amendments thereto. In addition to the sitting fees, the Non-executive and
Independent Directors may also be paid commission as may be determined by the Board subject to the limits specified under the 
Act.

The remuneration of Non-executive Directors and Independent Directors will be governed by the role assumed, number of
meetings of the Board and the committees thereof attended by the directors, the position held by them as the Chairman and 
member of the committees of the Board and overall contribution to the business. Besides these, the determination of 
remuneration of independent directors will also depend on the external competitive environment, track record, individual
performance of the directors and performance of the Company as well as the industry standards.
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Secretarial Audit Report - Annexure – II
FOR FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2015

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,                                                                                                                         
The Members,
Ojas Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
C-17, Ground Floor,
Laxmi Nagar, Nanakpura,
Delhi -110092

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate 
practices by M/s. Ojas Asset Reconstruction Company Limited (hereinafter called the company). Secretarial Audit was 
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and 
expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized 
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the 
audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2015 complied   with   the   statutory   provisions   listed  hereunder 
and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and 
subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for 
the financial year ended on March 31, 2015 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA') and the rules made there under;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there  under;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of Foreign Direct
Investment, Overseas  Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI 
Act'):-

(a) The Securities  and   Exchange   Board   of  India   (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992; 

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase 
Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 and The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) 
Regulations, 2014 notified on October 28, 2014  Not applicable to the Company during the Audit period);

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 (Not 
applicable to the Company during the Audit period); 

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 
regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,; and

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 (Not applicable to the 
Company during the Audit period).

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India (Not notified hence not applicable to 
the Company during the Audit period).
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(ii) The Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with BSE Limited.
During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, 
Standards, etc. mentioned above except to the extent as mentioned below: 

1) During the year under review company has not complied with section 203 of the Companies Act 2013, company has in 
default of appointment of Key Managerial personnel (KMP) who is, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary. The 
company is required to have all these KMPs throughout the year and if any vacancy arises then it need to be fulfilled within 
six months of vacancy arises.

2) As per section 138 of the Companies Act 2013 every listed company must have to appoint Internal Auditor who is a 
professional but company has not appointed any professional as a Internal Auditor for the year under review.

3) The company main object asset reconstruction business which comes under  The Securitization and Reconstruction of 
Financial Assets and Enforcement of Security Interest Act, 2002 (SARFAESI Act 2002) and the company on whom this act is  
applicable is required to have valid Certificate of Registration (COR)from RBI as per regulation 3 SARFAESI Act 2002  
before starting any business activities. The company has failed to have such valid Certificate of Registration (COR) from 
RBI as per regulation 3 SARFAESI Act 2002.

4) The company under review has passed the resolution in Extraordinary General Meeting to changed the registered office of 
the company from Delhi to Mumbai under section 12(5) of the Companies Act 2013 but as per 110 Companies act 2013  
company required to pass the resolution for  change in registered office from one state to another state through postal 
ballot.

5) As per Clause 35B of the Listing Agreement, company is required to provide e-voting facilities to its member in every 
general meeting but company has failed to provide it in last Annual general meeting.   

We further report that:

1) The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive 
Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the 
period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

2) Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at 
least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications 
on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

3) Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members' views, if any, are captured and recorded as part of the 
minutes. 

We further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on examination of the relevant 
documents and records in pursuance thereof, on test-check basis, the Company has complied with the other laws applicable to 
the Company. 

We further report that:

1) The Directors have disclosed their interest and concerns in contracts and arrangements, shareholdings and directorships 
in other companies and interests in other entities as and when required and their disclosures have been noted and 
recorded by the Board;

2) The Directors have complied with the disclosure requirements in respect of their eligibility of appointments, their 
being independent and compliance with the Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management Personnel;

3) The Company has obtained all necessary approvals under the various provisions of the Act.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and 
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

Place: Mumbai                                           For P D Pandya & Associates 
Date: 24th July, 2015                             Practicing Company Secretary 

Sd/-
                                                                                     (Paresh Pandya)
                                                                                                Partner
                                                                                           FCS No. 

C P No.: 
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ANNEXURE III - Form AOC- 2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) 

Of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in 
sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Act including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto:

1. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:  Not Applicable

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis: Not Applicable

On Behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
Tejas Hingu
(Director)

Date: 16/07/2015
Place: Mumbai

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Annexure - IV
Form No. MGT – 9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on the financial year ended on March 31, 2015
[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

i CIN L74899DL1985PLC019933

ii Registration Date 25/01/1985

iii Name of the Company M/s. Ojas Asset Reconstruction Company Limited

iv Category/Sub-category of the Company Company Limited by shares

v Address of the Registered office
& contact details

C-17, Ground Floor, Nanakpura, Laxminagar, 
New Delhi- 110092
Mail Id: ojasassetltd@gmail.com
Tejas Hingu – Ph. No: 011-41538995 | 022-60602489

vi Whether listed company Yes

vii Name , Address & contact details of the 
Registrar & Transfer Agent, if any.

M/s. Skyline Financial Services Private Limited
Address: D-153 A, 1st Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, 
Phase-I, Delhi- 110020
Mr. Virendra Rana - Tel : 011-64732681 - 88

II PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated

Sl.
No.

Name & Description of  main products/services NIC Code of the 
Product /service

% to total turnover of the company

1 Shares Trading and Finance & Investments 649 49.60%

2 Selling of Fabrics & Textile Products 475 50.40%
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III PARTICULARS OF HOLDING , SUBSIDIARY & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Sl.
No

Name & Address of the Company CIN/GLN Holding / Subsidiary / 
Associate

% of 
Shares 

Held

Applicable 
Section

1 Not Applicable - - - -

IV.   SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share capital Break up as % to total Equity)

(i)Category of 
Shareholders as 
on 31.03.2015

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the 
year

No. of Shares held at the end of the year change 
during 

the year

% 
chan

ge 
durin
g the 
year

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 

Shares

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 

Shares

A. Promoters

(1) Indian 1000000 0 1000000 4.71 1000000 0 1000000 4.71 0 0

a) Individual/HUF 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

b) Central Govt.or
State Govt. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

c) Bodies 
Corporates 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

d) Bank/FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

e) Any other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0

SUB TOTAL:(A) (1) 1000000 0 1000000 4.71 1000000 0 1000000 4.71 0 0

(2) Foreign

a) NRI- Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

b) Other Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

c) Bodies Corp. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

d) Banks/FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

e) Any other… 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

SUB TOTAL (A) (2) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Shareholding 
of Promoter 
(A)= (A)(1)+(A)(2)

1000000 0 1000000 4.71 1000000 0 1000000 4.71 0 0

B. Public 
Shareholding
(1) Institutions

a) Mutual Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

b) Banks/FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

C) Central Govt 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

d) State Govt. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
e) Venture Capital 
Fund 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

f) Insurance 
Companies 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

g) FIIS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

h) Foreign Venture
Capital Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

i) Others (specify) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
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SUB TOTAL (B)(1): 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

(2) Non Institutions
a) Bodies 
Corporates
i) Indian 399338 152400 551738 2.60 1554965 195000 1749965 8.24 1198227 5.64

ii) Overseas 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00

b) Individuals
i) Individual 
shareholders 
holding  nominal 
share capital upto 
Rs.1 lakhs

2062777 6050 2068827 9.74 3073964 166800 3240764 15.25 1171937 5.52

ii) Individuals 
shareholders 
holding nominal 
share capital in 
excess of Rs. 1 lakhs

15100935 556500 15657435 73.69 13417772 351600 13769372 64.80 -1888063 -8.89

c) Others (specify) 1390700 580300 1971000 9.28 1411899 77000 1488899 7.01 -482101 -2.27

SUB TOTAL (B)(2): 18953750 1295250 20249000 95.29 19458600 790400 20249000 95.29 0 0.00

Total Public 
Shareholding
(B)= (B)(1)+(B)(2)

18953750 1295250 21249000 100. 19458600 790400 21249000 100 0 0.00

C. Shares held by 
Custodian for GDRs 
& ADRs

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00

Grand Total (A+B+C) 19953750 1295250 21249000 100 19458600 790400 21249000 100 0 0.00

(ii) SHARE HOLDING OF PROMOTERS

Sl.
No.

Shareholders Name Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year

Shareholding at the 
end of the year

% change 
in share 
holding 

during the 
yearNo. of 

Shares
% of total 

shares
of the 

company

% of shares 
pledged 

encumbered 
to total 
shares

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
shares
of the 

company

% of shares 
pledged

encumbered 
to total 
shares

1 Vijaykumar Agarwal 500000 2.35 0.00 500000 2.35 0.00 0.00

2 Beena Agarwal 500000 2.35 0.00 500000 2.35 0.00 0.00

Total 1000000 4.71 0.00 1000000 4.71 0.00 0.00

(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding as on the financial year ended on March 31, 2015

Particulars Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

No. of
Shares

% of total
shares of the

company

No. of
Shares

% of total
shares of the

company
At the beginning of the year 1000000 4.71

Not Applicable
Date wise Increase/Decrease in Promoters
shareholding during the year specifying the reasons 
for increase /decrease (e.g. allotment /
transfer/bonus/sweat equity, etc.)

Nil Nil

At the end of the year 1000000 4.71
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(IV)  SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF TOP TEN SHAREHOLDERS (OTHER THAN DIRECTORS, PROMOTERS & 
HOLDERS OF GDRS & ADRS)

Sr.
No.

Shareholders Name Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year

Shareholding at the end of 
the year

No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares  of the 

company

No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares  of the 

company

1 OUT OF CITY TRAVEL SOLUTIONS LIMITED 1016250 4.78 0 0
2 MORYO INDUSTRIES LIMITED 900000 4.24 0 0
3 SHREE NATH COMMERCIAL AND FINANCE LIMITED 840000 3.95 0 0
4 RUPAK DEVELOPERS PVT LTD 820000 3.86 0 0
5 AMRITANSHU AGGARWAL 735000 3.46 0 0
6 ANUBHA AGGARWAL 735000 3.46 0 0
7 KUSUM DUA 403300 1.90 0 0
8 DSV FINANCE AND LEASING PVT LTD 344000 1.62 0 0
9 GAGAN GOYAL HUF 262500 1.24 0 0

10 DAVINDER GOYAL 262500 1.24 0 0.00
11 AMARDEEP  KADAM 0 0 300000 1.41
12 SURESHINE VINTRADE PVT LTD 0 0 201666 0.95
13 N M IMPEX PRIVATE LIMITED 0 0 200987 0.95
14 RAM KUMAR AGARWAL 0 0 200000 0.94
15 SAMIR THAKARSHI SHETHIA 0 0 200000 0.94
16 SHETHIA THAKARSHI MEGHJI 0 0 200000 0.94
17 SONIA KHANDELWAL 0 0 200000 0.94
18 PREMA AGARWAL 0 0 186500 0.88
19 CHARU AGRAWAL 0 0 179500 0.84
20 MAHESH P VAGHANI 0 0 150000 0.71

Total 6318550 29.74 2018653 9.50

(IV)  SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Sr. 
No.

Shareholder’s 
Name

Shareholding Date Increase/
Decrease in

Shareholding

Reason Cumulative
Shareholding

during the
year

(01-04-14 to
31-03-15)

% of total
Shares
of the

Company

For each of the 
Top Ten 

Shareholders

No. of
Shares at the

beginning
(01-04-14)
/ end of the

year
(31-03-15)

% of 
total

Shares
of the

Company

No. of Shares

1 Mr. Tejas Vinodrai 
Hingu – Whole 
Time Director

0 0 - - - 0 0

2 Mr. Shashikumar 
Ramdas Jatwal -
Non-Executive &
Independent 
Director

0 0 - - - 0 0

3 Mr. Pravin Kamble 
- Non-Executive &
Independent 

0 0 - - - 0 0
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Director

4 Mrs. Priya 
Khagram -  Non-
Executive &
Independent 
Director

0 0 - - - 0 0

Total 0 0 - - - 0 0

V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment
Secured Loans

excluding 
deposits

Unsecured 
Loans

Deposits Total 
Indebtedness

Indebtness at the beginning of the financial year

i) Principal Amount - 6,090,000 - 6,090,000

ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -

iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - -

Total (i+ii+iii) - 6,090,000 - 6,090,000

Change in Indebtedness during the financial 
year

- - - -

Additions - 14920149 14920149
Reduction - 21010149 21010149
Net Change - (6,090,000) (6,090,000)
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year - - - -

i) Principal Amount - - - -

ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -

iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - -

Total (i+ii+iii) - - - -

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole time director and/or Manager:
Sl.
No.

Particulars of Remuneration Name of the MD/WTD/Manager Total 
Amount

(Rs. In Lacs)1 Gross salary Mr. Tejas Vinodrai Hingu

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the 
Income Tax. 1961. 0.72 0.72

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income tax Act, 1961 - -

(c ) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) of the Income Tax 
Act, 1961 - -

2 Stock option - -

3 Sweat Equity - -
4 Commission - -

as % of profit - -

others (specify) - -
5 Others, please specify - -

Total (A) 0.72 0.72

Ceiling as per the Act N.A N.A
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B. Remuneration to Other Directors:

Sr.
No.

Particulars of
Remuneration

Name of Directors Total
Amount
(Rs. In 
Lacs)

Mr. 
Shashikumar 

Jatwal

Mr. Pravin 
Kamble

Ms. Deepti 
Lalwani*

Mrs. Beena 
Agrawal*

Mr. Ashwani 
Dewan*

1 Independent Directors

(a) Fee for attending board 
committee meetings - - - - - -

(b) Commission - - - - - -

(c ) Others, please specify - - - - - -

Total (1) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

2 Other Non Executive 
Directors

(a) Fee for attending 
board committee meetings - - - - - -

(b) Commission - - - - - -

(c) Others please specify. - - - - - -

Total (2) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Total (B)=(1+2) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Total Managerial 
Remuneration Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Overall Ceiling as per the 
Act. N.A

* Mrs. Beena Agrawal resigned w.e.f 22/12/2014
* Ms. Deepti Lalwani resigned w.e.f 20/01/2015
* Mr. Ashwani Dewan resigned w.e.f 20/01/2015

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel Other Than MD/Manager/WTD:
Sl.
No.

Particulars of Remuneration Name of the Company Secretary / 
CFO

Total 
Amount

(Rs. In Lacs)1 Gross salary -

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the 
Income Tax. 1961. - -

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income tax Act, 1961 - -

(c ) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) of the Income Tax 
Act, 1961 - -

2 Stock option - -

3 Sweat Equity - -
4 Commission - -

as % of profit - -

others (specify) - -
5 Others, please specify - -

Total (A) - -

Ceiling as per the Act N.A N.A
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VII. PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPPOUNDING OF OFFENCES

Type Section of 
the

Companies 
Act

Brief 
Description

Details of 
Penalty/Punishment/Compound

ing fees imposed

Authority 
(RD/NCLT/Court)

Appeal 
made if any 

(give 
details)

A.  COMPANY

Penalty

NonePunishment

Compounding

B. DIRECTORS

Penalty

NonePunishment

Compounding

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty

NonePunishment

Compounding

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Date: 16/07/2015 Sd Sd/-
Place: Delhi Tejas Hingu Shashikumar Jatwal

(Director) (Director)
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
A. THE COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate governance is a set of principles, systems, and practices through which the Board of Directors of the Company ensures 
transparency, fairness and accountability in a Company’s relationship with all its stakeholders, viz. shareholders, creditors, 
regulators, government agencies, employees, among others. Corporate governance is based on the principle of making all the 
necessary disclosures and decisions, accountability and responsibility towards various stakeholders, complying with all the 
applicable laws and a continuous commitment of conducting business in a transparent and ethical manner.

The report of the Company on Corporate Governance, as per Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, is listed hereunder:

B. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

We believe that the Board of Directors of the Company play a key role in the effectiveness of Corporate Governance practices, as 
they oversee the functioning of the Company and ensure that it continues to operate in the best interest of all the stakeholders. 
The Board of your Company conducts itself in such a way so as to meet the expectations of operational transparency to its 
stakeholders. Thus, the Company strives to keep its Board well informed and actively involved in all the important decision 
making processes of the Company.

C. COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The Board of Directors comprises 4 (Four) members out of which 3 (Three) are Non-executive and Independent Directors and 1 
(One) Whole Time Director. The Board also has a Woman Director as required under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement. The 
details of the Directors, as at March 31, 2015, including the details of their directorship on other Boards reckoned in line with 
Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, Committee/ chairmanship/membership (excluding Ojas) and their shareholding in the 
Company, are as given below:

The Board has received confirmation from the Non- Executive and Independent Directors that they qualify to be considered as 
Independent as per the definition of ‘Independent Director’ stipulated in Clause 49 (II)(B) (I) of the Listing Agreement and 
Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter called “the Act”). None of the Directors of the Company is related to each 
other.

None of the Directors hold Directorships in more than 20 companies. Further, any individual director’s directorships in public 
companies do not exceed 10. None of the Directors is serving as a member of more than ten committees or as the Chairman of 
more than five committees across all the public companies of which he is a Director. Necessary disclosures regarding committee
positions in other public companies as on March 31, 2015 have been made by the Directors.

Sr. 
No.

Name of Director and 
DIN

Category No. of Other 
Directorship

No. of equity 
shares held 
in company

Member/ Chairperson of 
the committee

Member Chairman
1 Mr. Tejas Hingu*

DIN:06936684 Whole Time Director Nil 0 2 Nil

2 Mr. Shashikumar Jatwal
DIN:06488424

Independent Non -
Executive Director 1 0 4 4

3 Mr. Pravin Kamble*
DIN:07016322

Independent Non -
Executive Director 1 0 Nil Nil

4 Mrs. Beena Agrawal#
DIN:06538879 Whole Time Director 1 500000 Nil Nil

5 Ms. Deepti Lalwani#
DIN:05283883

Independent Non -
Executive Director 2 0 4 0

6 Mr. Ashwani Dewan#
DIN: 00176221 Whole Time Director 5 - - -

7 Mrs. Priya Khagram*
DIN: 07250030

Independent Non -
Executive Director - - 2 -

*Mr. Tejas Hingu, Mr. Pravin Kamble and Mrs. Priya Khagram were appointed as Directors of the Company w.e.f. 22/12/2014, 20/01/2015 and 12/02/2015 
respectively.

#Ms. Deepti Lalwani, Mrs. Beena Agrawal and Mr. Ashwani Dewan were resigned as Directors of the Company w.e.f. 20/01/2015, 22/12/2014 and 20/01/2015
respectively.

D. BOARD MEETINGS

The Company holds at least four Board meetings in a year, one in each quarter, inter-alia, to review the financial results of the 
Company. The Company also holds additional Board Meetings to address its specific requirements, as and when required. All the 
decisions and urgent matters approved by way of circular resolutions are placed and noted at the subsequent Board meeting.
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Policy determining Material Subsidiaries and Related Party Transactions

Pursuant to requirements of Clause 49 of Listing Agreement, the Company has adopted the policy determining material
subsidiaries and the policy on related party transactions and the said policies are available on the Company’s website at
www.ojasltd.com.

Disclosure on Material Related Party Transactions

All material transactions entered into with related parties as defined under the Act and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement 
during the financial year 2014-15 were in the ordinary course of business. No materially significant related party transactions 
have been entered into during financial year 2014-15 having potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large.

Policy for prohibition of Insider Trading

The Company has adopted a code of conduct for prevention of insider trading with a view to regulate trading in securities by the 
Directors and employees of the Company. The Code requires pre-clearance for dealing in the Company’s shares and prohibits the 
purchase or sale of the Company’s shares by the Directors and employees while in possession of unpublished price sensitive 
information in relation to the Company or its securities.

The Company has appointed the Compliance Officer to ensure compliance of the said Code by all the Directors, Senior 
Management Personnel and employees likely to have access to unpublished price sensitive information.

Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy

The Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy has been adopted to provide appropriate avenues to the employees to bring to the 
attention of the management, the concerns about any unethical behavior, by using the mechanism provided in the Policy. In 
cases related to financial irregularities, including fraud or suspected fraud, the employees may directly approach the Chairman of 
the Audit Committee of the Company. We affirm that no director or employee has been denied access to the Audit Committee 
during financial year 2014-15. The Policy provides that no adverse action shall be taken or recommended against an employee in 
retaliation to his/her disclosure in good faith of any unethical and improper practices or alleged wrongful conduct. This Policy 
protects such employees from unfair or prejudicial treatment by anyone in the Group.

General Body Meetings

Location, date and time of the Annual General Meetings held during the last three years and Extra Ordinary General Meetings 
held during the last year are given below:

Financial 
Year

Type of 
Meeting

Location Meeting, Date and Time

2014-15 EGM C-17, Ground Floor, Nanakpura, Laxmi Nagar, Delhi -
110092 24th August, 2014 at 03.00 p.m.

2013-14 AGM E-102,Jhule Lal Apartment, Pitampura, Delhi- 110034 29th AGM - 5th July, 2014 at 11:30A.M.

2012-13 AGM Saraswati Vihar, Pitampura, Delhi- 110034 28th AGM - 5th September, 2013 at 
11:30 A.M.

2011-12 AGM E-102,Jhule Lal Apartment, Pitampura, Delhi- 110034 27Th AGM 2- 7th September, 2012 at 
11:30 A.M.

L. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

Quarterly, Half Yearly and Yearly financial results are sent to the Stock Exchanges immediately after they are approved by the 
Board.

General Information for Members

I. Annual General Meeting – - The 30th Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held on 24th August, 2015 at New Delhi

II.

III. Book Closure date :  13/08/2015 to 14/08/2015

Financial Calendar Last AGM held on 05/07/2014
First Quarter Results Declared Third Week of August, 2014
Second Quarter Results Declared Third  Week of November, 2014
Third Quarter Results Declared Second Week of February, 2015
Fourth Quarter Results Declared Last Week of May, 2015
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IV. Dividend payment date :  Not  applicable

V. a) Listing of Equity Shares: Bombay Stock Exchange
b) Listing fees is duly paid to the Bombay stock exchange Limited as per listing agreement.

VI. a) BSE Scrip Code: 538607
b) Demat ISIN Numbers in NSDL & CDSL INE457P01012for Equity Shares

VII. Stock Market Data at BSE:

Month High Low Close No. of 
Shares

April 2014 - - - -
May 2014 - - - -
June 2014 - - - -
July 2014 - - - -
Aug 2014 598.00 550.00 554.00 40,302
Sept 2014 600.00 547.75 559.00 3,36,850
Oct 2014 669.00 446.30 558.00 3,28,644
Nov 2014 685.00 477.00 570.00 3,95,407
Dec 2014 675.00 476.00 567.05 1,96,825
Jan 2015 675.00 456.10 552.25 2,78,859
Feb 2015 624.00 463.00 550.00 4,48,603
March 2015 625.00 371.00 491.50 5,94,578

VIII. Distribution of Shareholding as on 31st March, 2015

Shareholders Shareholding
No. of Shares Nos. % Holding  in 

Rs.
%

Up to 500 38 3.44% 1177 0.01%
501     -   1000 30 2.71% 28161 0.14%
1001  -     2000 35 3.16% 61663 0.30%
2001   -  3000  55 4.97% 146094 0.71%
3001   -    4000 18 1.63% 66284 0.32%
4001   -  5000  128 11.57% 632310 3.09%
5001   -  10000 312 28.21% 2815343 13.76%
10001 - and above 490 44.30% 16707568 81.67%
Total 1106 100.00% 20458600 100.00%

IX. Shareholding pattern as on 31.03.2015

Category No. of Shares 
held

% of 
Shareholding

A Promoter’s Holding 
1 Promoters

                                        - Indian Promoters 1000000 4.71%
                                        - Foreign Promoters  0 0

2 Persons acting in concert 0 0
Sub – Total 1000000 4.71%

B Non-Promoter’s Holding 
3 Institutional Investors
a) Mutual Funds and UTI 0 0
b) Banks, Financial Institutions, Insurance Companies 0 0

(Central/State Govt. Institutions / Non Government Institutions)
C FII’s 0 0

Sub – Total 1000000 4.71%
4 Others 
a) Private Corporate Bodies 1749965 8.24%
b) Indian Public 17010136 80.05%
c) NRI’s/OCB’s     - NRI 5 0.00%
d) Any Other (Please specify) - Clearing Members 1488894 7.01%

Sub-Total 20249000 95.30%
Grand Total 21249000 100.00%
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X. DEMATERIALISATION OF SHARES.

The Company’s shares are compulsorily traded in dematerialized form and are available for trading on both the depositories, v
National Securities Depository Ltd. (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Ltd. (CDSL), Percentage of Shares held in 
physical and dematerialized form as on 31st March, 2015

Mode No. of Shares % Shares

Physical Form 790400 3.72%

Electronic Form 
with NSDL

9764442 45.95%

Electronic Form 
with CDSL

10694158 50.33%

Total 21249000 100.00%

XI. INVESTOR CORRESPONDENCE:
For Transfer / Dematerialsation of Shares, payment of dividend on shares, interest and redemption of debentures and any other
query relating to the shares and debenture of the Company

Skyline Financial Services Private Limited
D-153 A, 1st Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, 
Phase – I, Delhi- 110020

For Any other query    
M/s. Ojas Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
Regd Off: C-17, Ground Floor, Laxmi Nagar, 
Nanakpura, Delhi – 110092
Corp Off: G-29, Sej Plaza, Near Nutun School, 
Marve Road, Malad (West), 
Mumbai- 400064 |  Tel: 60602489
Website: www.ojasltd.com
Email Id: ojasassetltd@gmail.com

Ojas Asset Reconstruction Co. Ltd

DEMATERIALISATION OF SHARES.

The Company’s shares are compulsorily traded in dematerialized form and are available for trading on both the depositories, v
L) and Central Depository Services (India) Ltd. (CDSL), Percentage of Shares held in 

physical and dematerialized form as on 31st March, 2015.

% Shares

3.72%

45.95%

50.33%

100.00%

INVESTOR CORRESPONDENCE:
For Transfer / Dematerialsation of Shares, payment of dividend on shares, interest and redemption of debentures and any other
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M/s. Ojas Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
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CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE FROM AUDITORS AS STIPULATED UNDER CLAUSE 49 
OF THE LISTING AGREEMENT WITH THE STOCK EXCHANGES IN INDIA

To
The Members,
Ojas Asset Reconstruction Company Limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by M/s. Ojas Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
(the ‘Company’), for the year ended March 31, 2015, as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of the said Company 
with stock exchanges in India. 

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Company’s Management. Our examination was 
carried out in accordance with the Guidance Note on Certification of Corporate Governance (as stipulated in Clause 49 of the 
Listing Agreement), issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and  was limited to procedures and 
implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is 
neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the Company has 
complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance, as stipulated in the above mentioned Listing Agreement. 

We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness 
with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For DMKH & Co
(Chartered Accountants)
Firm’s Registration No.: 116886W

Sd/-
Manish Kankani 
(Partner) 
M.No. 158020

Date: 29/05/2015
Place: Mumbai

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

DECLARATION REGARDING COMPLIANCE BY BOARD MEMBERS AND SENIOR 
MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT FOR THE BOARD 

OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

I hereby confirm that, as per the provisions of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement executed with the Stock Exchanges, all the
Board Members and Senior Management Personnel of the Company have affirmed compliance with the “Code of Conduct for the 
Board of Directors and the Senior Management Personnel”, for the financial year 2014-15.

For Ojas Asset Reconstruction Company Ltd

Sd/-
Tejas Hingu
(Whole Time Director)
DIN: 06936684

Date:16/07/2015
Place: Delhi
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CEO / CFO CERTIFICATION
To,
The Board of Directors,
Ojas Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
We hereby certify that:

1. We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended 31st March 2015 and that to the best 
of our knowledge and belief;

a) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that 
might be misleading.

b) These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing 
accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

2. No transaction is entered into by the company during the year which is fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s Code 
of Conduct.

3. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we have 
evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and we have 
disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of 
which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

4. We have indicated to the  auditors and the Audit Committee:

a) Significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year.

b) Significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the notes to the 
financial statements; and 

c) Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the management 
or an employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial reporting.

For Ojas Asset Reconstruction Company Ltd

Sd/-
Tejas Hingu
(Whole Time Director)
DIN: 06936684

Date:16/07/2015
Place: Delhi
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of,
Ojas Asset Reconstruction Co. Limited 

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Ojas Asset Reconstruction Co Limited (“the Company”), 
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2015, and the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the 
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect 
to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial 
performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Accounting principal generally accepted in India, including 
the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This 
responsibility also includes the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities , selection and 
application of appropriate accounting policies , making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent and design, 
implementation and maintenance of internal financial  controls , that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records  relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true 
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to 
be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatements. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial statements 
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s directors, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone 
financial statements give the information required by the Act the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity 
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2015, and its 
profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Emphasis of Matter

As referred in note no 29 to the financial statement, the company have not complied with section 134 (1) and section 203 of 
Companies Act, 2013. Our opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter.  

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2015 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of India in 
terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in the 
paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purposes of our audit;
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b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from 
our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting   Standards specified under 
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2015, taken on record by the 
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2015, from being appointed as a director in 
terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us.

I. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

II. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any 
material foreseeable losses.

III. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Company.

For DMKH & Co.,
(Chartered Accountants)
Firm’s Registration No.: 116886W

Sd/-
Manish Kankani 
(Partner) 
M.No. 158020

Date: 29/05/2015
Place: Mumbai
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ANNEXURE TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
Referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading of “Report on other Legal and Regulatory 

Requirements” of our report of even date

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate 
and in terms of the information and explanations given to 
us, we state that: -

i. a) The Company has generally maintained proper 
records showing full particulars, including quantitative 
details and situation of fixed assets.

b) We have been informed that the fixed assets of the 
Company have been physically verified by the 
management during the year and no material 
discrepancies have been noticed on such verification. In 
our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is 
reasonable having regards to the size of the company and 
the nature of its assets.

ii. a)  As explained to us, inventories (shares in Demat
form) have been physically verified by the management 
during the year. In our opinion, the frequency of 
verification is reasonable.

b) In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanation given to us, the procedure of physical 
verification of Inventories referred to in 2(a) above 
followed by the management, are reasonable and 
adequate in relation to the size of the Company and the 
nature of its business.

c) In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanation given to us, the company has maintained 
proper records of inventories. As per the information 
and explanation provided to us and having regard to the 
size of the company, no material discrepancies were 
noticed on physical verification of inventory as compared 
to book records.

iii. According to the information and explanations given to 
us, the Company has not granted any loans, secured or 
unsecured, to or from companies, firms or other parties 
covered in the  register  required  to   be  maintained  
under  Section  189  of   the  Act.   Accordingly, Paragraph 
3 (iii) of the Order is not applicable.

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us there are adequate internal 
control procedures commensurate with the size of the 
Company and the nature of its business with regards to 
the purchase of inventory (shares), fabrics, fixed assets 
and sale of goods and services. During the course of our 
audit, we have neither come across nor have been 
informed of any continuing failure to correct major 
weaknesses in the aforesaid internal control system.

v. The Company has not accepted any Deposits from any 
party, therefore following provisions of Companies Act 

Sec 73 to 76 and rules made there under and permission 
of Reserve Bank of India, the question does not arise.

vi. The maintenance of cost records is not prescribed for the 
company by the central government under sub-section 
(1) of sec 148 of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore the 
company has not maintained any cost records during the 
year.

vii. a)According to the information and explanation given to 
us and the records of  the company examined by us, in 
our opinion, the company is regular in depositing the 
undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, 
employees’ state insurance, income tax, sales-tax, wealth 
tax, service tax, Duty of custom, duty of excise, value 
added tax and other and other material statutory dues, as 
applicable, with the appropriate authorities

b) According to the information and explanation given to 
us, no undisputed amount payable in respect of   income 
tax, sales-tax, wealth tax, service tax, Duty of custom, 
duty of excise, value added tax and cess were in arrears, 
as at 31st March,2015 for a period of more than six 
months from the date they became  payable. 

c) The amounts required to be transferred to investor 
education and protection fund in accordance with the 
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and rules 
made there under have been transferred to such fund 
within time.

viii. The Company has  accumulated loss, and  has  incurred 
cash loss during the financial year covered by our audit 
to the tune of Rs. 900,202/-

ix. According to the records of the company examined by us 
and the information and explanation given to us, The 
Company has not taken any loan form financial 
institution, bank or debenture holders. Therefore, the 
provision of clause 3(ix) of the said order is not 
applicable to the company.

x. In our opinion, and According to the information and 
explanation given to us, the company has not given any 
guarantee for others for loans taken by them from banks 
and financial institutions during the year. Therefore, the 
provision of clause 3(x) of the said order is not applicable 
to the company.

xi. There are no term loans taken by the company, therefore 
this clause is not applicable.

xii. According to the information and explanations given to 
us, no material fraud on or by the company has been 
noticed or reported during the course of audit.

For DMKH & Co.
(Chartered Accountants)
Firm’s Registration No.: 116886W

Sd/-
Manish Kankani 
(Partner) Date: 29/05/2015
M.No. 158020 Place: Mumbai
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 As at 31 March, 2015  As at 31 March, 2014 

Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.)

A EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

1        Shareholders’ funds
(a) Share capital 2             212,490,000                            212,490,000                            
(b) Reserves and surplus 3             (11,268,540)                           (10,109,000)                           

201,221,460                          202,381,000                          

2        Non-current liabilities
(a) Long-term borrowings 4             -                                             6,090,000                                 
(b) Deferred tax liabilities -                                             -                                             
(c) Other long-term liabilities -                                             -                                             
(d) Long-term provisions -                                             -                                             

-                                             6,090,000                               
3        Current liabilities

(a) Short-term borrowings -                                             -                                             
(b) Trade payables 5             39,560,703                              4,133,621                                 
(c) Other current liabilities 6             15,477                                      341,390                                    
(d) Short-term provisions 7             4,450                                         31,675                                      

39,580,630                             4,506,686                               

TOTAL 240,802,090                          212,977,686                          

B ASSETS

1        Non-current assets
(a) Fixed assets
(i) Tangible assets 8             1,784                                         13,823                                      
(ii) Intangible assets -                                             -                                             
(iii) Capital work-in-progress -                                             -                                             
(iv) Intangible assets under development -                                             -                                             
(v) Fixed assets held for sale -                                             -                                             

1,784                                        13,823                                      
(b) Non-current investments 9             -                                             3,750,000                                 
(c) Deferred tax assets (net) -                                             -                                             
(d) Long-term loans and advances 10           -                                             189,406,460                            
(e) Other non-current assets 11           -                                             247,300                                    

-                                             193,403,760                          
2        Current assets

(a) Current investments -                                             -                                             
(b) Inventories 21,700,952                              -                                             
(c) Trade receivables 12           29,262,335                              9,879,804                                 
(d) Cash and cash equivalents 13           9,272,343                                 9,603,320                                 
(e) Short-term loans and advances 14           180,564,675                            76,979                                      
(f) Other current assets -                                             -                                             

240,800,305                          19,560,103                             

TOTAL 240,802,090                          212,977,686                          
Significant Accounting Policies 1             

In terms of our report attached. 
For DMKH & Co. For and on behalf of the Board 
Chartered Accountants                       
FRN:- 116886W

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
CA. Manish Kankani Tejas Hingu Shashikumar Jatwal

(Director) (Director)
M.No.- 158020
Place : MUMBAI Sd/-
Date : 29/05/2015

(Director)
Pravin Kamble

OJAS ASSET RECONSTRUCTION CO. LTD.

Particulars

Partner

 The accompanying notes are an integral part of the 
financial statements 

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2015

  Note 
No. 
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 For the year ended 
31  March, 2015 

 For the year ended 
31  March, 2014 

Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.)
A CONTINUING OPERATIONS

1        Revenue from operations (gross) 15         158,347,483 1,978,408
2        Other income 16         12,821,218 -                                              

3        Total revenue 171,168,701 1,978,408

4        Expenses
(a) Cost of Goods Sold 17         170,254,692 -                                              
(b) Employee benefits expense 18         527,458 384,000
(c) Finance costs 19         281,137 31,172
(d) Depreciation and amortisation expense 8            346 248,536
(e) Other expenses 20         1,252,916 1,033,848

Total expenses 172,316,548 1,697,556

5        
 Profit / (Loss) before exceptional and extraordinary items  and tax (3 - 
4) 

(1,147,847) 280,852

6        Exceptional items -                                              -                                              

7         Profit / (Loss) before extraordinary items and tax (5 + 6) (1,147,847) 280,852

8        Extraordinary items -                                              -                                              

9        Profit / (Loss) before tax  (7 + 8) (1,147,847) 280,852

10      Tax expense:
(a) Current tax expense for current year -                                              96,232
(b) (Less): MAT credit (where applicable) -                                              -                                              
(c) Current tax expense relating to prior years -                                              -                                              
(d) Net current tax expense -                                              -                                              
(e) Deferred tax -                                              -                                              

-                                             96,232
11      Profit / (Loss) for the year  (9 - 10) (1,147,847) 184,620

12       Earnings per share (of  Rs. 10/- each): 
(a) Basic (0.05) 0.01
(b) Diluted (0.05) 0.01

 The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial 
statements 

In terms of our report attached.
For DMKH & Co. For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants                       
FRN:- 116886W

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
CA. Manish Kankani Tejas Hingu Shashikumar Jatwal

(Director) (Director)
M.No.-158020
Place : MUMBAI Sd/-
Date : 29/05/2015 Pravin Kamble

(Director)

OJAS ASSET RECONSTRUCTION CO. LTD.

 Note 
No. 

Particulars

             STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2015

Partner
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Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.)

A. Cash flow from operating activities

Net Profit / (Loss) before extraordinary items and tax (1147847) 280851
Adjustments for:
Misc. Expenditure written off 247300 247000
Depreciation and amortization 346 1536
Finance costs 281137 (619065) 529387

Operating profit / (loss) before working capital changes (619065) 529387
Changes in working capital:
Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in operating assets:
 Inventories (21700952) -                       
 Trade receivables (19382531) 11450000
 Short-term loans and advances (180487696) -                       
 Other current assets -                       -                       

Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities:
 Short-term borrowings -                       -                       
 Trade payables 35427082 (320000)
 Other current liabilities (325913) 341390
 Short-term provisions (27225) (186497235) (359312) 11112078

(187116300) 11641465

Cash flow from extraordinary items -                       -                       
Cash generated from operations (187116300) 11641465

-                       (96232)

Net cash flow from / (used in) operating activities (A) (187116300) 11545233

B. Cash flow from investing activities
-                       -                       

3750000 -                       
Investment in Companies -                       3750000 -                       -                       

Cash flow from extraordinary items -                       -                       
3750000 -                       

Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activities (B) 3750000 -                      

C. Cash flow from financing activities
Advances given 189406460 (3700266)
Proceeds from long-term borrowings (6090000) 1290000
Finance cost (281137) -                       

183035323 (2410266)

Cash flow from extraordinary items -                       -                       

Net cash flow from / (used in) financing activities (C) 183035323 (2410266)

Net increase / (decrease) in Cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (330977) 9134967
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 9603320 468353
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 9272343 9603320

Cash and cash equivalents as per Balance Sheet 9272343 9603320
In terms of our report attached. 
For DMKH & Co. For and on behalf of the Board 
Chartered Accountants                       
FRN:-116886W

Sd/- Sd/-
Tejas Hingu Shashikumar Jatwal

Sd/- (Director) (Director)

Sd/-
Place : Mumbai Pravin Kamble
Date :  29/05/2015 (Director)

 M.No.- 158020 

 Reconciliation of Cash and cash equivalents with the Balance 

 CA. Manish Kankani 
 Partner

 Fixed Assets Purchase 

Particulars

 Sale proceed from Investments 

 Net income tax (paid) / refunds 

OJAS ASSET RECONSTRUCTION CO. LTD.

Particulars  For the year ended 
31 March, 2015 

 For the year ended 
31 March, 2014 

             CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR COMPANIES OTHER THAN FINANCE COMPANIES

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March, 2015
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NOTE 2: SHARE CAPITAL

Particulars
 Number of 

shares 
Amount (Rs.)

 Number of 
shares 

Amount (Rs.)

(a) Authorised:
21,250,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 21,250,000          212,500,000        21,250,000          212,500,000        
(Previous year 21,250,000 Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each)

(b) Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares:
21,249,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up 21,249,000          212,490,000        21,249,000          212,490,000        

Total Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares 21,249,000          212,490,000        21,249,000          212,490,000        

(a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the reporting year
Particulars

 Number of 
shares 

Amount (Rs.)
 Number of 

shares 
Amount (Rs.)

Equity Shares
At the beginning of the year 21,249,000          212,490,000        21,249,000          212,490,000        
Bonus Issue during the year * -                         -                         -                         -                         
Outstanding at the end of the year 21,249,000          212,490,000        21,249,000          212,490,000        

(b) Shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% of euity share capital:

Nil -                         -                         -                         -                         

     TOTAL [ 5% & above ] -                         -                         - -

( c) Terms/rights attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of  Rs. 10 per share.Each holder of equity shares is entitled
 to one vote per share. The Company decleres and pays dividend in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of 
directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in ensuing Annual General Meeting. In event of liquidation of the Company
the holders of equity shares would be entitled  to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential
 amounts. The Distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

 Name of the shareholder 
 Number of      

shares 
 % Shareholding 

As at 31 March, 2014As at 31 March, 2015
 Number of 

shares 
 % Shareholding 

 As at 31 March, 2014 

OJAS ASSET RECONSTRUCTION CO. LTD.

 As at 31 March, 2015  As at 31 March, 2014 

 As at 31 March, 2015 

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 As at 31 March, 2015 As at 31 March, 2014
Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.)

(10,109,000)                                   (10,293,619)
(11,693)                                            -                                                      

(1,147,847)                                      184,619

(11,268,540)                                 (10,109,000)

(11,268,540)                                 (10,109,000)

 NOTE 3: RESERVES AND SURPLUS 

Particulars

Total

 (a) Surplus / (Deficit) in Statement of Profit and Loss  
Opening balance

Add: Profit / (Loss) for the year
Less: Profit / (Loss) transfer to Genral Reserve

   Closing balance

Less: Adjusment relating to Fixed Assets
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NOTE 4 - LONG TERM BORROWINGS

 As at 31 March, 2015 As at 31 March, 2014
Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.)

 Unsecured 
                                                          -   5,090,000 

            (b) Others                                                           -   1,000,000 
                                                          -   6,090,000 Total

            (a) Related parties 

Particulars

NOTE- 5  TRADE PAYABLE

 As at 31 March, 2015  As at 31 March, 2014 
Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.)

Trade payables:
For Goods 39,560,703                                   4,133,621                                                
 For Expenses -                                                  -                                                             

39,560,703                                 4,133,621                                              

NOTE-6 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 

 As at 31 March, 2015  As at 31 March, 2014 
Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.)

Other Remittances
      (a) Kalyani Commodities Pvt Ltd -                                                  307,390                                                   
      (b) Salary Payable 15,477                                           8,000                                                        
       (c) Professional Charges -                                                  26,000                                                      

15,477                                          341,390                                                  

As at 31 March, 2015 As at 31 March, 2014

Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.)
       Provision - Others: 

 (i) Provision for  Income tax  -                                                                                                                   -   
 (ii) Provision  for Expenses 4,450                                                                                                     31,675 

4,450                                             31,675                                                     

Particulars

Particulars

 Particulars 

Total

Total

NOTE-7 SHORT TERM PROVISIONS

 Balance 
as at 

1 April, 2014 
 Additions 

 Unamortised 
carring Value 

 Borrowing cost 
capitalised 

 Other 
adjustments 

 Balance 
as at 

31 March, 2015 
Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.)

Furniture                         63,000 -                            -                            -                             63,000                      

 Total 63,000                      -                               -                            -                           -                            63,000                     
 Previous year 63,000                      -                               -                            -                           -                            63,000                     

 Balance 
as at 

1 April, 2014 

 Depreciation / 
amortisation 

expense for the 
year  

 Unamortised 
carring Value 

 Balance 
as at 

31 March, 2015 

 Balance 
as at 

31 March, 2015 

 Balance 
as at 

31 March, 2014 

Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.)

Furniture                         49,177 346                               11,693                    61,216                     1,784                        13,823                      

 Total 49,177                      346                              11,693                    61,216                    1,784                       13,824                     
 Previous year 47,641                      5,778,747                 -                            90,005,379           13,823                     15,359                     

 A.  Tangible assets 

 Accumulated depreciation and impairment  Net block 

OJAS ASSET RECONSTRUCTION CO. LTD.

 Tangible assets 

 Gross block 

 A. 

NOTE-8 FIXED ASSETS
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NOTE-9 NON CURRENT INVESTMENT

Total Total
No. Of 
Shares

Rs.
No. Of 
Shares

Rs. Rs.
No. Of 
Shares

Rs.
No. Of 
Shares

Rs. Rs.

A. Other investments

(a)
Investment in equity 
instruments
(i) Shares of Hanmilap 
Roshni Ltd 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4686 3750000 3750000

Aggregate amount 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4686 3750000 3750000

As at 31 March, 2014
Quoted Unquoted Quoted Unquoted

Particulars As at 31 March, 2015

 As at 31 March, 2015  As at 31 March, 2014 
Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.)

 Unsecured Loans 
         1) Related Parties -                                            45,500,000                             
         2) Other Parties -                                           143,905,460                           

 Total  -                                            189,405,460                         

 As at 31 March, 2015  As at 31 March, 2014 
Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.)

 Preliminary Expenses 
 Opening Balance 247,300                                   494,300                                   
  Less: Written off (247,300)                                (247,000)                                

 Total  -                                            247,300                                  

 As at 31 March, 2015  As at 31 March, 2014 
Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.)

 Trade receivables outstanding for a period exceeding six months from 
the date they were due for payment  

 Secured, considered good -                                            -                                            
 Unsecured, considered good 29,262,335                             9,879,804                                
 Doubtful -                                            -                                            

29,262,335                             9,879,804                                
 Other Trade receivables 
 Secured, considered good -                                            -                                            
 Unsecured, considered good -                                            -                                            
 Doubtful -                                            -                                            

-                                            -                                            

Total 29,262,335                           9,879,804                              

 As at 31 March, 2015  As at 31 March, 2014 
Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.)

 (a) Cash on hand 445,033                                   28,458                                     
 (b) Cheques, drafts on hand -                                            -                                            
 (c) Balances with banks 
 (i) In current accounts 8,827,310                                9,574,862                                
 (ii) In deposit accounts  -                                            -                                            

 Total  9,272,343                              9,603,320                              

NOTE- 12 TRADE RECEIVABLE

NOTE- 11 OTHER NON CURRENT ASSET

Particulars

NOTE- 13 CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS

Particulars

Particulars

NOTE- 10 LONG TERM LOANS & ADVANCES

Particulars
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NOTE- 14 SHORT TERM LOANS & ADVANCES

 Particulars As at 31 March, 2015 As at 31 March, 2014

Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.)

 (a) Loans and advances to related parties -                                            -                                            

-                                            -                                            

 (b) Deposits 100,000                                   -                                            

100,000                                  -                                            
 (c) Balances with government authorities  1,214,658                                76,979                                     

1,214,658                              76,979                                    
  (d)  Other Parties 179,250,017                           -                                            

 Total 180,564,675                         76,979                                    

NOTE- 15 INCOME FROM OPERATIONS

 Particulars 
 For the year ended 

31 March, 2015 
 For the year ended 

31 March, 2014 
Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.)

Operating revenue
  Fabric Sale 86,262,335                             -                                            
  Share Sales 72,085,148                             -                                            

Total 158,347,483                         -                                            
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NOTE- 16 Other Income

 Particulars  For the year ended  For the year ended 31 
Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.)

Interest Income 12,821,218                         1,978,408                           

12,821,218                        1,978,408                          

NOTE -17 COST OF GOODS SOLD

 Particulars  For the year ended  For the year ended 31 
Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.)

 Opening Stock -                                      -                                      
 Add: Purchases 191,955,644                      -                                      

191,955,644                      -                                      
 Less: Closing Stock (21,700,952)                      -                                      

 Cost of Goods Sold 170,254,692                      -                                      

 Total                        170,254,692                                           -   

NOTE- 18 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

 Particulars  For the year ended  For the year ended 31 
Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.)

Salaries and wages 521,000                              384,000                              
Staff Welfare Expenses 6,458                                  -                                      

527,458                              384,000                              

NOTE- 19 FINANCE COST

 Particulars  For the year ended  For the year ended 31 
Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.)

Interest 281,137                              31,172                                

281,137                              31,172                                

NOTE- 20 OTHER EXPENSES

 For the year ended 31  For the year ended 31 
Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.)

Advertisement Expenses 48,280                                58,375                                
Audit Fees 44,500                                22,472                                
Bank Charges 4,057                                  -                                      
Commision Expense 17,000                                -                                      
Conveyance & Transportation Expense 17,801                                33,003                                
Share Transfer Expense 107,678                              -                                      
Directors Remuneration 72,077                                -                                      
Electricity Expense 4,677                                  -                                      
Legal & Professional Charges 86,618                                27,483                                
Listing Fees 149,939                              786,126                              
Misc. Expense 21,003                                -                                      
Other Transaction Charges 250,493                              -                                      
Postage & Telegram 6,726                                  8,500                                  
Preliminary expenses Written Off 247,300                              37,390                                
Rent Rate & Taxes 123,300                              54,000                                
ROC Fees 43,600                                6,500                                  
Telephone Expenses 7,867                                  -                                      

Total 1,252,916                          1,033,848                          

 Particulars 
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Ojas Asset Reconstruction Co Ltd
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31ST
MARCH, 2015

NOTE 1:
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

(a) Corporate Information

Brief Business Activity:
Dealing in Finance and Share Trading and Fabric Trading

(b) Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

The financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material respects with the accounting standards notified by 
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules 2006, (as amended) and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the 
Act"). The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on an accrual basis in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in India. The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the 
Company and are consistent with those used in previous year.

(c) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management 
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the results of operations during the reporting period. Although these 
estimates are based upon management's best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results could differ from these 
estimates. 

(d) Revenue recognition

All incomes and expenditure are recognized as per ‘Accounting Standard- 9’ accounted on accrual basis except where stated 
otherwise.

(e) Fixed Assets 

(i) Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the 
purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition price. Borrowing costs directly 
attributable to acquisition of fixed assets which take substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are also 
included to the extent they relate to the period till such assets are ready to for its intended use. Any trade discounts and 
rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase be put to use.

(ii) Intangible fixed assets 

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible 
assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Intangible assets are 
amortized on a basis which is estimated to be the useful life of the asset.

(f) Depreciation

Depreciation has been provided on Straight line method at the rates and in the manner prescribed in Schedule II of the 
Companies Act, 2013 on pro-rata basis from the date assets have been put to use.

(g) Impairment of assets

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may 
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized in accordance with Accounting Standard-28 “Impairment of Assets”, 
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount as on the carrying date. The 
recoverable amount is higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell vis-à-vis value in at the lowest levels for which there 
are separately identifiable cash flows.

(h) Investments 

Long term investments are stated at cost. Provision for diminution in the value of long term investments is made only if 
such decline is of a permanent nature.
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Current investments are carried individually, at the lower of cost and fair value. Costs of investments include acquisition 
charges such as brokerage, fees and duties.

(i) Inventories

Inventories are valued at cost or net realizable value whichever is lower.

(j) Taxation       

Provision for current tax is made as per the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961.

Deferred tax for the year is recognized on timing difference, being the difference between taxable incomes and accounting 
income that originates in one period and is capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods.

The deferred tax charge or credit and the corresponding deferred tax liabilities or assets are recognized using the tax rates 
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the 
extent there is a reasonable certainty that the assets can be realized in future, however when there is unabsorbed 
depreciation or carry forward loss under taxation laws, deferred tax assets are recognized only if there is a virtual certainty 
of realization of such assets. 

(k) Provision, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when there is a present obligation as 
a result of past events and it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources. Contingent Liabilities are not recognized 
but are disclosed in the Notes. Contingent Assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.

(l) Retirement Benefits

Liabilities in respect of bonus, gratuity, and retirement benefit & leave encashment is being accounted for on cash basis.

(m) Earnings per share

The earnings considered in ascertaining the company’s EPS comprise of the net profit after tax as per Accounting Standard 
20 on “Earnings Per Share”, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. The number of shares used in 
computing basic EPS is the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period. The diluted EPS is calculated 
on the same basis as basic EPS, after adjusting for the effects of potential dilutive equity shares unless the effect of the 
potential dilutive equity shares is anti-dilutive.

(n) Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before extraordinary items and tax is adjusted 
for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. 
The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated based on the available 
information.

NOTES TO ACCOUNTS:
21. Balances of Loans and Advances, Secured Loans, Trade Payables & Others are subject to confirmation and reconciliation and 

consequential adjustments, if any. 

22. In the opinion of the Board & to the best of their knowledge & belief the value of     realization of current assets, loans & 
advances in the ordinary course of business would not be less than the amount at which they are stated in the Balance Sheet 
& the provisions for all the loans & determined liabilities is adequate and not in excess of the amount.

23. Provision for retirement benefits to employees was provided on accrual basis, which is in conformity with Accounting 
Standard-15 issued by ICAI and the amount has not been quantified because actuarial valuation report is not available. 
However, in the opinion of the management the amount involved is negligible and has no material impact on the Statement 
of Profit & Loss.

24. According to a technical assessment carried out by the Company, there is no impairment in the carrying cost of cash 
generating units of the Company in terms of accounting standards-28 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India.

25. The Company has not received the required information from suppliers regarding their status under the Micro, Small and 
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. Hence disclosures, if any, relating to amounts unpaid as at the yearend 
together with interest paid/payable as required under the said Act have not been made.
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26. Earnings Per Share (AS-20) :

The Earning per Share computed as per the requirement under Accounting Standard 20 on Earning per Share issued by The 
Institute of Chartered Accountant of India, is as under:

2014-2015
(Rs.)

2013-2014
(Rs.)

Profit Attributable to Equity Share Holders (After Tax) (11,47,847) 1,84,619

Weighted Average Number of Equity Share (Nos.) 2,12,49,000 2,12,49,000

Basic/ Diluted Earnings Per Share (0.05) 0.01

Face Value per Equity Share 10.00 10.00

27. Related Party Transaction :

Related Parties and Nature of Relationship:

Note: Related Parties as disclosed by the management and relied upon by auditors.
                         

Related Party                           Amount Nature of Transactions

Mr. Tejas Vinodrai Hingu         72,077 Remuneration to Director

28. Segment Information (AS-17) 

Company has two segments of activities namely “Trading and Financial Activities & Fabric Business”.  Since there is No 
export turnover, there are no reportable geographical segments.

Sr 
No Particulars

2014-2015 2013-2014 2014-2015 2013-2014 2014-2015 2013-2014
1 Segment Revenue 84,906,366   1,978,408      86,262,335   -                  171,168,701 1,978,408      

2 Segment results (639,036)       1,978,408      1,553,046     -                  914,010         1,978,408      

3 Unallocable expense (net) 2,061,857     1,697,556      
4 Operating Income -                  -                  
5 Other Income (Net) -                  -                  

6 Profit before exceptional item and tax (639,036)       1,978,408      1,553,046     -                  (1,147,847)    280,852         

7 Exceptional item -                  -                  

8 Profit before tax (1,147,847)    280,852         

9 Tax expense
Less :- Provision for Income Tax -                  96,232           
Less :- Provision for Deferred Tax -                  -                  

10 Net Profit/(Loss) for the year (1,147,847)    184,620         

11 Segment Assets 211,539,755 212,977,686 29,262,335   -                  240,802,090 212,977,686
(Current assets plus Fixed assets & WLP and Investments)

12 Segment Liabilities 106,270         4,506,686      39,474,360   -                  39,580,630   4,506,686      

Other Information
13 Capital Expenditure (unallocable) -                  -                  
14 Depreciation & amortisation (unallocable) -                  -                  
15 Other significant non cash expense (allocable) -                  -                  
16 Other significant non cash expense (net) (unallocable) -                  -                  

Finance & Securities Textile Trading Total

Due to unavailability of suitable basis for apportionment, only direct expenses related to Textile Trading business are considered in segment results of Textile 
Trading Activity

OJAS ASSET RECONSTRUCTION COMPANY LTD
Note : 28

In compliance to Accounting Standared 17
Amount in Rs. Amount in Rs. Amount in Rs.

Related Party Nature of Relation ship
Mr. Tejas Vinodrai Hingu
Mr. Shashi Kumar Ramdas Jatwal
Mr. Pravin Bhanudas Kamble
Mrs. Priya Manshukh Khagram 
Mrs. Beena Agrawal
Mr. Vijay Agrawal

Director
Director
Director
Director 
Promoter
Promoter
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29. The company being listed company required to follow section 203 & 134 (1), However, the view of absence of appropriate 
candidate for filing vacancy of CFO and CS have not appointed. The said Key Managerial Personnel as per section 203 and to 
the extent 134(1) Signing of financial statement have been considered only by director. However, the management has 
considered the matter in the process of appointing relevant Key Managerial Personnel.    

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the board
For DMKH & co.         
(Chartered accountants)
Firm Regn. No. 116886w

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
CA Manish Kankani Tejas Vinodrai Hingu Shashikumar Jatwal
(Partner) (Director) (Director)
M.no.158020                                                                       

Sd/-
Place: Mumbai. Pravin Kamble
Date:  29/05/2015 (Director)
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Ojas Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
Regd. Off: C-17, Ground Floor, Laxmi Nagar, Nanakpura, Delhi – 110092

CIN: L74899DL1985PLC019933

ATTENDANCE SLIP
30th Annual General Meeting, August 24, 2015 at 12:00 P.M.

Regd. Folio No.

No. of Equity Shares held

* DP ID:

* Client ID:

Name of the Shareholder

Name of Proxy 

I/We hereby record my / our presence at the 30th Annual General Meeting of the members of the Company held on Monday, the 

August 24, 2015 at 12:00 P M. at C-17, Ground Floor, Laxmi Nagar, Nanakpura, Delhi – 110092.

SIGNATURE OF THE MEMBER OR THE PROXY ATTENDING THE MEETING

________________________ _______________________

If Member, please sign here If Proxy, please sign here

Note: This form should be signed and handed over at the Meeting Venue.

* Applicable for investors holding shares in electronic form.
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Form No. MGT – 11
PROXY FORM

[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and Rule 19(3) 
of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN: L74899DL1985PLC019933
Name of Company: Ojas Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
Registered Office: C-17, Ground Floor, Laxmi Nagar, Nanakpura, Delhi – 110092

Name of the member(s):

Registered address:

Email Id:

Folio No./Client Id:

DP ID:

I/We, being the member(s) holding ___________________ shares of the above named Company, hereby appoint:

1. Name : _______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Address :_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

E-mail Id : ___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Signature : _________________________________________________________________________________________________________________, or failing him

2. Name : _______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Address :_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

E-mail Id : ___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Signature : _________________________________________________________________________________________________________________, or failing him

3. Name : _______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Address :_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

E-mail Id : ___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Signature : _________________________________________________________________________________________________________________, or failing him

As my/our Proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 30th Annual General Meeting of the 
Company, to be held on Monday, August 24, 2015 at 12:00 P M. at C-17, Ground Floor, Laxmi Nagar, Nanakpura, Delhi –
110092and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

Resolution 
No.

Particulars

Ordinary Business:

1 To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone Financial Statements consisting of the Balance Sheet as 
at March 31, 2015, the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that date 
and the Explanatory Notes annexed to, and forming part of, any of the above documents together with the 
reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon.

2 To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Tejas Hingu (DIN: 06936684), Whole Time Director, who retire by rotation 
in compliance of the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter called “the Act”) and 
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

3 To ratify and appoint M/s. DMKH & Co., Chartered Accountants, Mumbai (Registration No. 116886W) as 
Statutory Auditors of the Company to fill the casual vacancy caused by the resignation of M/s. A M A A & 
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Associates, Chartered Accountants, (Registration No. 013066C)

Special Business:

4 To regularize the appointment of Mr. Pravin Kamble (DIN: 07016322) as an Independent Non- Executive 
Director.

5 To regularize the appointment of Mrs. Priya Khagram (DIN: 07250030) as an Independent Non- Executive 
Director.

6 To appoint Mr. Tejas Hingu (DIN: 06936684) as the Whole time Director of the company.

7 To pursue / carry on the business mentioned in the other objects of the Company

8 Reclassification of Capital of the Company by Sub-division (Stock Split) of equity shares of face value of Rs. 10/-
each into Rs. 1/- each

9 Alteration of Clause V of Memorandum of Association of the Company, consequently reclassification of Capital of 
the Company by Sub-division (Stock Split)

10 Adoption of new set of Articles of Association of the Company in conformity with the Companies Act, 2013

11 To make investments, give loans, guarantees and provide securities beyond the prescribed limits.

12 To increase Borrowing Powers of the Board of Directors under Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 up 
to Rs. 50 Crores 

13 Creation of Security under Section 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 in connection with the borrowings of 
the Company 

Signed this ……………. day of ……………………………….……,  2015

………………………………………………………
Signature of the Member

………………………………………………………..
Signature of Proxy holder(s)

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the 
Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Annual General Meeting.

Please 
Affix

Re.1/-
Revenue

Stamp and 
sign

across
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BOOK POST 

Registered Office
C-17, Ground Floor, Laxmi Nagar, 
Nanakpura, Delhi – 110092
Tel: 011-41538995
Website: www.ojasltd.com
Email Id: ojasassetltd@gmail.com
Tel: 60602489


